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March 22, 2013

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Honorable Chris Christie
Governor

State House

125 West State Street

P.O. Box 001

Trenton, New Jersey 08625

ATTN: Amy Herbold, Assistant Counsel
Governor's Authorities Unit
Dear Governor Christie:

Enclosed please find an original and one copy of the minutes of the meeting of the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority held on Thursday, March 21, 2013.

| hereby certify that it is a true and correct copy of the proceedings.
Sincerely,

Neorzom b Dt

Katherine A. Newell
Assistant Secretary

Enclosures
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
HELD AT 103 COLLEGE ROAD EAST, PRINCETON, NEW JERSEY
ON THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2013

The meeting was called to order at 9:11 a.m. by Chairman Jacobs. The New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority gave notice of the time, place and date of this meeting via fax and email on
January 7, 2013, to The Star Ledger, The Times and the Secretary of State and by posting the notice
at the offices of the Authority in Princeton, New Jersey. Pursuant to the New Jersey Open Public
Meetings Act, a resolution must be passed by the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority in
order to hold a session from which the public is excluded.

AUTHORITY MEMBERS PRESENT:

Roger B. Jacobs, Esq., Chairman -

Ridgeley Hutchinson, Vice Chairman _
Andrew P. Sidamon-Eristoff, State Treasurer (represented by Steven Petrecca) (via phone)
Rochelle Hendricks, Secretary of Higher Education (represented by Gregg Edwards)

AUTHORITY MEMBERS ABSENT:

Joshua Hodes, Treasurer

STAFF PRESENT:

Derek S. Hansel, Executive Director

Katherine Newell, Esq., Director of Risk Management
Marie P. Mueller, Controller

Sheryl Stitt, Director of Legislative Strategy & Public Communications
Kristen Middieton, Assistant Controlier

Jennifer LaMarsh, Associate Project Manager

Gary Vencius, Senior Accountant

Denise Carroll, Accountant |

Jamie O’'Donnell, Accountant

Linda Hazley, Office Manager

Sheila Toles, Exec. Assistant/Human Resources Specialist

ALSO PRESENT:

Amy Herbold, Esq., Governor’s Authorities Unit
Edward Pillsbury, Esq., Deputy Attorney General



ITEMS OF DISCUSSION

-1,

Executive Director's Report

Mr. Hansel reported that staff has been working with the Office of the Secretary of Higher
Education on the implementation of the Building Our Future Bond Act and other State grant
programs. He reported that last month the Secretary’s Office along with Authority staff held a
Technical Assistance Session at The College of New Jersey. He reported that the session
was well received. As part of the Solicitation process, the team has answered 140 separate
questions regarding the grant application process. Mr. Hansel reported that grant
applications submitted by March 11, 2013 were eligible for a completion review to insure all
the items requested in the solicitation for grant applications were provided and that the
completion review has been accomplished and all the Institutions that submitted their
applications by the March 11th date had been notified as to the status of their application
completeness.

Mr. Hansel thanked and commended the Authority’s Accounting staff for their hard work
preparing for the Authority’s 2012 audit.

Project Management Report — List of Pending Projects

Mr. Hansel reported that there are several projects for which various colieges and universities
have requested Authority financing. Mr. Hansel briefly described the projects and reported
that the projects are under review and at various stages of development.

A summary of the projects fo be financed, together with estimated financing amounts and
proposed sale dates, is appended as Exhibit 1.

Adoption of Resolution Authorizing a Temporary Construction Easement for The
Richard Stockton College of New Jersey

Ms. Newell reported that the resolution authorizes a temporary right-of-entry/construction
easement to Atlantic County for property that the Authority owns in connection with The
Richard Stockton College of New Jersey's outstanding Series 2008 A bonds. She reported
that the property is near the Garden State Parkway at Exit 41 which is being redesigned as
part of a Garden State improvement project by Atlantic County and the NJ Turnpike Authority
for improvements to Exits 41 and 44. Ms. Newell advised that the project would benefit the
College because it would provide better access from both Exits of the Parkway. She also
advised that in consideration for the temporary right-of-entry and similar easements from the
State of New Jersey for property used by the College, the Turnpike Authority would provide
signage on the Parkway for the College, which has not previously been available to them.

Ms. Newell reported that the temporary easement, which does not adversely affect the use of
the College’s property has a term of one year which may be extended for an additional six
months with month to month extensions thereafter if agreed to by the Authority and the
Coliege. ‘

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption of the following entitled resolution:

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY CONSENTING TO AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
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DELIVERY OF A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT BY AND
BETWEEN THE AUTHORITY AND THE COUNTY OF ATLANTIC RELATING
TO CERTAIN PROPERTY OWNED BY THE AUTHORITY AND LEASED TO
THE RICHARD STOCKTON COLLEGE OF NEW JERSEY

The motion was seconded by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimousiy.

The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit I,

Adoption of Resolution Authorizing an Easement for Kean Llnivérsity

Ms. Newell reported that the resolution authorizes the execution of an easement that the
Department of Transportation (DOT) is requiring as a condition to granting a permit for the
installation of certain drainage utilities by Kean University on land that the Authority owns in
connection with the University’s outstanding Series 1998 B bonds.

Ms. Newell reported that the property originally housed the campus police and other
University storage facilities, but is now the site of the University’s new academic building.
She explained that the new drainage utilities are necessary because the new construction
changed the drainage overflow pattern and that DOT is requiring the easement under which
Kean agrees to install and maintain an upgraded stormwater filtration system.

Michael Tripodi, University Counsel, commented on the resolution and Phyllis Duke,
Assistant VP of Operations, explained the exact location of the drainage units.

Mr. Edwards moved the adoption of the following entitled resolution:

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY CONSENTING TO AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
RECORDING OF A RESTRICTIVE COVENANT BY AND BETWEEN THE
AUTHORITY AND NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
REQUIRING THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF STORMWATER
FILTRATION EQUIPMENT AS A CONDITION TO THE ISSUANCE BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION OF A PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT
DRAINAGE FACILITIES ON CERTAIN PROPERTY OWNED BY THE
AUTHORITY AND LEASED TO KEAN UNIVERSITY

The motion was seconded by Mr. Hutchinson and passed unanimously.
The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit IIL.

Adoption of Resolution Appointing the Authority’s Financial Printer

Ms. LaMarsh reported that the Authority’s current contract for financial printing services will
expire on Aprif 26, 2013 and accordingly, the Authority had issued a Request for Proposals on
January 31, 2013 to 18 firms. Ms. LaMarsh reported that the Authority had received 4
responses and upon review of the proposals, Wold Financial Printing, who is the Authority’s
current financial printer, received the highest overall score and also had the lowest fee. Ms.
LaMarsh reported that staff has been very pleased with Wold's performance the past two
years and recommended that Wold Financial Printing be appointed for an additional period of
two years.

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption of the following entitied resolution:



RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF A FINANCIAL PRINTER

The motion was seconded by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously.

The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit IV.

Report of the Authority’s Audit Committee and Adoption of Resolution Accepting the
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report for 2012

Mr. Hutchinson reported that the Audit Committee consisting of himseif, Mr. Hodes and Mr.
Petrecca met on February 19, 2013 and March 19, 2013 with Randy Nelson of Ernst & Young
LLP (E&Y) who had described the Audit process and responsibilities and answered questions
from Committee Members. Mr. Hutchinson reported that the Audit Committee was satisfied
with the financial statements and the audit results as presented and recommended approval
by the Members of the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report. Mr. Hutchinson thanked
Mr. Nelson for a great job and for being so helpful throughout the process.

Mr. Jacobs invited Mr. Nelson to describe parts of the statements. Mr. Nelson thanked
Authority staff and noted that, although the Authority’s Accounting department had been short
one staff member, as well as an outside consultant that had assisted them in the past in the
preparation of the financial statements, staff had worked together and provided an excelient
package, on time, which helped them get the audit done quickly and efficiently. He reported
that the Authority is in excellent financial condition and that the net position increased by over
$1 million this year and liquid assets are up $500,000. Mr. Nelson reported that Emst &
Young issued an unqualified or “ciean” opinion on the Authority’s financial statements. He
reported that they had identified no items of material weakness or significant deficiencies as it
relates to internal control and is operating effectively. He reported that E&Y issued a report
on compliance as it relates to bond resolutions and that letier is also “clean” or unqualified
opinion as it relates to various bond resolutions.

Mr. Jacobs commented on the great work Ms. Mueller does and Ms. Mueller commended her
staff for their hard work. Mr. Jacobs thanked the Accounting staff.

Mr. Edwards moved the adoption of the following entitled resolution:
RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY ACCEPTING AND ADOPTING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR 2012

The motion was seconded by Mr. Hutchinson and passed unanimously.

The adopted resolution and report is appended as Exhibit V.

Report on Operating and Construction Fund Statements and Dishursements

Ms. Muelier, Controlier, reviewed the Results of Operations and Budget Variance Analysis and
reported on the status of construction funds and related investments.

Mr. Hutchinson moved that the reports be accepted as presented; the motion was seconded
by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously.

The reports are appended as Exhibit V1.



Next Meeting Date

Mr. Jacobs thanked Authority staff and University attendees and welcomed Amy Herbold as the
Authority’s new liaison from the Governor's Authorities Unit. Mr. Jacobs then reminded
everyone that the next scheduled meeting would be on April 23, 2013 at 9:00 am. at the
Authority’s office and requested a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Hutchinson moved that the meeting be adjourned at 9:33 a.m.; the motion was seconded by
Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously.

Respec ully submitted,

_f/é/éw / %g/z(//

Katherine A. Newell
Assistant Secretary
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EXHIBIT II

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY (THE “AUTHORITY”) CONSENTING TO AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY AND THE COUNTY OF
ATLANTIC RELATING TO CERTAIN PROPERTY OWNED BY THE
AUTHORITY AND LEASED TO THE RICHARD STOCKTON COLLEGE
OF NEW JERSEY (THE “COLLEGE”)

March 21, 2013

WHEREAS:  The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority") was created
pursuant to the New Jersey FEducational Facilities Authority Law, P.L. 1967, c.
271, N.LS.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq., as amended and supplemented (the “Act”)
and authorized to issue its obligations to assist New Jersey’s public and private
colleges and universities to finance educational facilities as defined in the Act;
and

WHEREAS On March 4, 2005, the Authority issued its $31,140,000 aggregate principal
amount of Revenue Bonds, The Richard Stockton College of New Jersey Issue,
Series 2005 C (the <2005 C Bonds”) to finance, infer alia, the acquisition and
renovation of an office building at 10 Jimmie Leeds Road, Township of
Galloway, County of Atlantic, New Jersey (the “Administration Building”);
and ‘

WHEREAS: On August 14, 2008, the Authority issued its $136,910,000 aggregate principal
amount of Revenue Bonds, The Richard Stockton College of New Jersey Issue,
Series 2008 A (the “2008 A Bonds™) to finance, infer alia, the refinancing of
the Authority’s 2005 C Bonds; and

WHEREAS: In connection with financing and refinancing of the Administrative Building,
respectively, the Authorily acquired title to the property located at 10 Jimmie
Leeds Road, known as Block 866.01, Lot 9 in the Township of Galloway,
County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey (the “Authority Owned Property™) and
leased such Authority Owned Property to the College pursuant to the terms of a
Lease and Agreement by and between the Authority and the College dated as of
March 1, 2008 (the “2008 Agreement™); and

WHEREAS: The College has advised the Authority that the County of Atlantic (the
“County”) and the New Jersey Turnpike Authority (the “NJTA”) are in the
process of implementing improvements to the Garden State Parkway at Exit 41
and Exits 44 (the “Improvements™); and

WHEREAS: The College has been further advised by the County that a portion of the
Improvements for Exit 41 will require a twelve (12) month temporary
construction easement/right-of-entry for approximately 930 square feet of the
Authority Owned Property in the form appended hereto as Exhibit A (the
“Basement”), with the option of extending the Easement after the twelve (12)



WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS

month period, if necessary, for an extension for a six month period and
thereafter if needed on a month-to-month basis with written notice to the
Authority and the College from NJTA as to construction needs and written
acknowledgement thereof by the Authority; and

The Easement will terminate upon completion of the work by NJTA; and

Accordingly, the College has determined that the granting of the Easement is
reasonable and is in the best interest of the College and the granting of the
Easement will not have an adverse affect on the Administration Building or the
Authority Owned Property and has requested that the Authority grant the
Easement on behalf of the College for the implementation of the respective
Improvements; and

the Members of the Authority have determined that it is necessary and
advisable to grant the FEasement on behalf of the College for the
implementation of the respective Improvements; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY: '

SECTION 1.

SECTION 2.

The Members hereby authorize the Authority to grant the Easement for the
implementation of the Improvements to the County for the Authority Owned
Property provided that the County bear any costs incurred in connection with
the grant of the Easement, including costs for preparation and recording of the
Easement, if any, and the maintenance of the Authority Owned Property
subject to the 2008 A Agreement and the Easement.

The Members hereby authorize and direct the Executive Director, the Deputy
Executive Director, the Director of Risk Management, the Secretary and any
Assistant Secretary (each, an “Authorized Officer”) to execute and deliver, and
to attest, if necessary, the Easement for the Authority Owned Property, in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, including any additional documentation that
may be necessary for extensions of the Easement, if necessary; with such
changes (including any changes necessary to protect the rights of the Authority
and College under the 2008 A Agreement) as the Authorized Officer executing
the same deems necessary or appropriate with advice of the Office of the New
Jersey Attorney General, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by
execution of the Easement.

SECTION 3. The Members hereby authorize the Authorized Officers to take and all actions

SECTION 4.

necessary and appropriate to implement the Easement including extensions
permitied in accordance with the terms of the Easement and including
execution and delivery of any additional documents in the form approved by
the Authorized Officer executing same, such execution to be conclusive
evidence of the approval thereof.

This resolution shall take effect in accordance with N.J.S.4. 18A:72A-4(1).



Mr. Hutchinson moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and
read, which motion was seconded by ___ Mr. Edwards __ and upon roll call the following members

voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Joshua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Stockton Easement -3/21/13
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Prepared by:

Apthony J. Pagano
‘Assistant County Counsel

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

THIS TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT is made on this day of
, 2013, by and between, the New Jersey E@ucational Facilities Authority,

a body politic of the State of New Jersey, whose address 13103 College Road East, Princeton,
New Jersey 08540 (hereinafter, referred to as the “Authdfig;" and “Grantor”™), on behalf of The
Richard Stockton College of New Jersey, Whos "address is 101 Vera King Farris Drive,
nd the COUNTY OF ATLANTIC, 2 body
corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey, w1th principal offices at 1333 Atlantic Avenue,

Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401 (heremafter referred to as the "County").

BACKGROUND STATEEV]ENT

The County, in collaboration with the New i ersey Tu:rnplke Authority, has prepared plans
to widen and improve a portlen of Jimmie Leeds Road in Galioway Township, in connection
with the New Jersey Turnplke Authomty s Garden State Parkway Interchanges 41 and 44 Project
(the “Improvements”) To perform these Improvements the County must acquire a temporary
constructzon easement across part, of the Grantor’ § property located at 10 West Jimmie Leeds
Road, 1dent1f1ed as pa:ﬂ; of Lot 9, in Block 866. 0t in the Township of Galloway, County of
Atlantic, State of New Iersey, which is described and illustrated on the attached Exhibit A
(General Property Parcel Map }.)

Accordmgly, it is in the mterest of the County of Atlantic and for the welfare of the
general public that the lands hereinafter described, shall be burdened with a temporary
construction easement (the “Easement”) for the purpose of constructing and improving the said
roads and appurtenances thereto along and upon the hereinafter described lands .

The location of the subject property identified in Exhibit A is a part of the property commonly

known as the Grantor from the College by Deed dated November 28, 2007 and recorded on

December 6, 2007, in Book Volume 12743 as Instrument No. 2007107556 in accordance with

the original issuance of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 C, The Richard Stockton

State College of New Jersey Issue (the “2005 C Bonds™) and subject to the terms and provisions

of the Lease and Agreement by and between the Authority and the College dated as of March 1,
Page 1 of 6



2005 (the “2005 Agreement™). Said 2005 C Bonds have since been refunded by the Authority’s
Revenue Bonds; Series 2008 A, The Richard Stockfon College of New Jersey Tssue (the “2008 A
Bonds™) and subject to the terms and provisions of the Lease and Agreement by and between the
Authority and the College dated as of March 1, 2008 (the “2008 Agreement” and any future
agreements to refund the 2008 A Bonds or finance additional projects, if any, on the property
(the “Agreements”).

The Grantor, at the request and with the consent of the College, desires to grant the
Easement to the County to facilitate construction of the highway improvements, subject to the

terms and conditions set forth herein.

ITIONS

TERMS & CO
NOW THEREFORE, in considei‘éﬁén for payment in the amount of
One Dollar ($1.00), the Grantor does hereby dedicate to the County, its dcsignees, SUCCESSOTS
and assigns, an Basement across and through the 'folloWin_g land in Galloway Township, Atlantic
County, State of New Jersey identiﬁed'dﬁ:iche municipal tax map as part of Block 866.01, Lot 9,
and being identified on attached Exhibit A to accommodate the improvements along Jimmie
Leeds Road. ‘ ‘ | .
The County an'd_‘i_t‘s assigns acknowledge that this Easement is subject to the terms of the
'2008 Agréemént and may be subject to future Agreements, if any.

This Easement shall include the right to enter on the property to construct or improve said
roadways as shown on the aforesaid map. This Easement right shall also include, by way of
example and not limitation, the right to enter with equipment, personnél and materials, for the
purposes of constructing the said public roads and related public improvements (including, but
not limited to street paving, curbing, traffic signs and signals, and to accommodate public
utilities). Any such public improvements constructed and owned by the County, shall be
maintained by the County. Improvements constructed or located within or affecting the property
for the benefit of the Grantor (including, but not limited to any Grantor driveway aprons,

driveways, landscaping, sprinklers or other fixtures), shall be maintained by the Grantor, its

successor and assigns.

The Grantor, College or its assigns shall not use the Easement area in any manner which
could reasonably cause, directly or indirectly, a potential health hazard, safety hazard to the

traveling public or any personnel of the County or the contractor performing work, maintenance
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or inspection services on or around the Improvements. Similarly, the Grantor, College or its
assigns, shall not do anything -which shall unreasonably prevent or interfere with eniry or re-
entry by personne! of the County or a contractor, or their material or equipment to the area of the
easement as depicted on the aforesaid maps when carrying out or implementing the rights created
under this Easement.

DURATION OF THIS EASEMENT. This temporary right shall begin from the date
of notice from the County Engineer to the Grantor and the College advising that work shall
commence, and shall terminate upoﬁ completion of said Work,_which shall be for an estimated
duration of (12) twelve months. If the County, within ,its. ‘sbie discretion, determines that the
temporary easement or right-of-entry needs to be extendeé 111 order to complete the work, such
right may be extended by a written notice from. the County Engineer to the Grantor and the
College and a wriiten acknowledgement from the Grantor and the College for a six (6) month
period and thereafter, if need be, on a month-to-month bas1s with a written notice from the
County Engineer and acknowledgement from the Grantor and the Colle ge until compietlon of the
Improvements. The right of easement termmates upon completion of the construction.

TOGETHER WITH the right and perm1sszon to perform topographic grading, top
soiling and seeding Wlthm the Fasement area as shown on the aforesaid map, together with the
right to trim or remove trees, stumps and other vegetation, 1f any, along with the right to
construct and maintain erosion control facilities and appurtenances including the right to
construct and maintain temporary fencmg, all as the County Engineer may deem reasonably
necessary to accommodate the Improvements, provided; however, during the term of this
easement, any vegetation damaged or removed in connection with the Improvements shall be
replaced in kind, in a manner that is consistent with the College’s Master Plan and any Forestry
Management Plan that has been approved: or established for the College by the NJ Pinelands
Commission. Prior to commencement of vegetation removal, the County Engineer or his
designee shall, at the College’s request, meet with a representative of the College at the work site
to review these requirements

HOLD HARMLESS: In further consideration for the grant of the rights and prmlegcs
set forth herein, the County, covenants and agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and save and
hold harmless, the Grantor, the College, their respective Board members, agents and employees,
successors and assigns, from and against any and all losses, damages, suits, claims, fines,

penalties, costs and expenses whatsoever (including death and defense of any such claums),
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which it, they or any of them may directly or indirectly suffer, sustain, or be subject to, or be.
held liable for, as a result of or in any way connected with use or exercise of the rights and
privileges given herein by Grantor and the College.

ASSIGNMENT: The easement rights granted hereunder shall be assignable to the New
Jersey Turnpike Authority and its contractors, profided that they- shall be bound by énd subject
to all conditions set forth herein. Such assignment shall be in duly authorized and executed

written agreement, a copy of which shall be provided to the Grantor and the College.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have cause,_;hé.éje presents to be executed by their

respective duly authorized officers as the day and year above wriften.

WITNESS/ATTEST: GRANTOR

Katherine A. Newell DerekﬁS.‘. Hansel

Assistant Secretary Executive D_i;ector
WITNESS/ATTEST: '~ COUNTY OF ATLANTIC
SONYA G. BARRIS, CLERK DENNIS LEVINSON,
Board of Chosen Frecholders County Executive

‘Reviewed and Approved as to form
on behalf of County of Atlantic

JAMES F. FERGUSON
County Counsel
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ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

STATE OF NEW JERSEY )
SS:

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX )

I CERTIFY that on _, 2013, the above named Grantor (s}
personally came before me and acknowledged under oath, to my satisfaction, that he/she:

(a) is the person(s) named in and personally signed this Deed/Easement;

(b) signed, sealed and delivered this instrument as his/her voluntary act and deed; and

(c) that the full and actual monetary consideration paid or to be paid to the Grantor(s) is
the sum of One Dollar ($1.00). E

Signed and sworn to before me on this

———Dayof L o0

Notary Public
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
) SS:

COUNTY OF ATLANTIC)

I CERTIFY that on , 2013 Sonya G. Harris personally came
before me and this person acknowledged under oath, to my satisfaction, that:

(a) this person is the Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders of Atlantic County;

(b) this person is the attesting witness to the signing of this Deed by the proper corporate
officer who is Dennis Levinson, the County Executive of Atlantic County;

(c) this Deed was signed and delivered by the County at its voluntary act duly authorized
by a proper resolution of the Atlantic County Board of Chosen Freeholders;

(d) this person knows the proper seal of the ¢orporation which was affixed to this Deed;

(e) this person signed this proof to attest to the truth of these facts.

Signed and sworn to before me on

Day of e ‘ ,2013
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EXHIBIT 11X

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY (THE ¢“AUTHORITY”) CONSENTING TO AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND RECORDING OF A
RESTRICTIVE COVENANT BY AND BETWEEN THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY AND NEW JERSEY
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REQUIRING THE
INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF STORMWATER
FILTRATION EQUIPMENT AS A CONDITION TO THE ISSUANCE BY
THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION OF A PERMIT TO
CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE FACILITIES ON CERTAIN PROPERTY
' OWNED BY THE AUTHORITY AND LEASED TO KEAN UNIVERSITY
(THE “UNIVERSITY”)

March 21, 2013

WHEREAS:  The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority”) was created
pursuant to the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law, P.L. 1967, c.
271, N.L.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq., as amended and supplemented (the “Act”)
and authorized to issue its obligations to assist New Jersey’s public and private
colleges and universities to finance educational facilities as defined in the Act;
and '

WHEREAS:  On August 15, 1991, the Authority issued its $9,625,000 aggregate principal
amount of Revenue Bonds, Kean University Issue, Series 1991 B (the “1991 B
Bonds”) to finance, infer alia, the acquisition of a parcel of land to be used by
the University in the Township of Union, County of Union, New Jersey (the
“Green Lane Property”); and

WHEREAS: On March 12, 1998, the Authority issued its $9,595,000 aggregate principal
amount of Revenue Bonds, Kean University Issue, Series 1998 B (the “1998 B
Bonds™) to finance, inter alia, the refinancing of the Authority’s 1991 B Bonds;

and

WHEREAS: In connection with financing and refinancing of the Green Lane Property, the
Authority acquired title to the Green Lane Property Jocated at the intersection
of Green Lane and Route 82 at Block 105, Lot 13 in the Township of Union,
County of Union, State of New Jersey and leased such Green Lane Property to
the University pursuant to the terms of a Lease and Agreement by and between
the Authority and the University dated as of August 1, 1991, as amended
March 1, 1998 (the “1998 B Agreement”); and

WHEREAS: The Green Lane Property description for the 1998 B Agreement has been
further amended to reflect the subsequent widening of Green Lane and the
redevelopment of the area as indicated on the filed Major Subdivision Plat of
the Union Station Redevelopment Area filed with the Union County Clerk’s
Office on May 23, 2003 and indicated in the First Amendment to the 1998 B
Agreement dated August 29, 2005 and recorded on September 8, 2005 at Deed

Book 5528, Page 0984; and
{00129215.00C}



WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS

The Green Lane Property description for the 1998 B Agreement has been
further amended to reflect the release of a portion of the Green Lane Property
to the New Jersey Department of Transportation for the Route 82 streetscape
project as indicated in the Second Amendment to the 1998 B Agreement dated
September 20, 2005 and recorded on October 17, 2005 at Deed Book 5538,
Page 0015; and : :

The University has advised the Authority that in connection with the
redevelopment and construction of the academic building on the Green Lane
Property, the University has submitted an application to the New Jersey
Department of Transportation (the “DOT”) for a drainage permit to construct
drainage facilities on a portion of the Green Lane Property located on the
western side of Route 82 for the purpose of discharging storm water via pipe to
the existing 27" sewer main located beneath the Route 82 (the “Drainage
Utilities™); and

The University, in consultation with its architects and engineers have submitted
the plans for the Drainage Utilities and the DOT has advised the University that
prior to final acceptance being granted by DOT, that a restrictive covenant be
recorded concerning the Best Management Practices and Maintenance
schedule, pertaining to the installation of a stormwater filtration device that
was required as part of the construction. This device has been installed and
filters the stormwater of trash, sediment and floatable debris prior to
discharging to the main located under Route 82 (the “Covenant™); and

The University has determined that the recording of the Covenant is necessary
and reasonable and is in the best interest of the University and the recording of
the Covenant will not have an adverse affect on the redevelopment of the
Green Lane Property and will be beneficial to the construction of the academic
building and has requested that the Authority consent to and execute and
record such Covenant on behalf of the University for the finalization of the
permit process by the DOT for the implementation and development of the
Drainage Utilities; and :

The Members of the Authority have determined that it is necessary and
advisable to consent to such Covenant on behalf of the University for the
redevelopment of the Green Lane Property; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY:

SECTION 1. The Members hereby consent to the Covenant and authorize the Authority to

{00129215 DOC}

execute, deliver and record or cause the recording of the Covenant in
connection with the University’s application for the drainage permit to the
DOT for the implementation of the Drainage Utilities for the Green Lane
Property provided that the Grantee and/or the University bear any costs
incurred in connection with entry into and implementation of the Covenant,
including costs for preparation and recording of said Covenant, if any, and the



SECTION 2.

SECTION 3.

SECTION 4.

maintenance of the Green Lane Property subject to the 1998 B Agreement and
Covenant.”

The Members hereby authorize the Executive Director, the Deputy Executive
Director, the Director of Risk Management, the Secretary and any Assistant
Secretary (each, an “Authorized Officer”) to execute and deliver, and to aftest,
if necessary, the Covenant for the Green Lane Property, substantially in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, including any additional documentation that
may be necessary for the application of the drainage permit and Covenant; with
such changes (including any changes necessary to protect the rights of the
Authority under the 1998 B Agreement) as the Authorized Officer executing
the same deems necessary or appropriate with advice of the Office of the New
Jersey Attorney General, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by
execution of the Covenant. '

The Members hereby authorize the Authorized Officers to take any and all
actions necessary and appropriate to obtain the permit and implement the
Covenant, including the execution and delivery of any additional documents in
the form approved by the Authorized Officer executing same, such execution to
be conclusive evidence of the approval thereof.

This resolution shall take effect in accordance with N.J.S.4. 18A:72A-4(3).

Mr. Edwards moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and read, which
motion was seconded by Mr. Hutchinson __ and upon roll call the following members

voted:

| AYE:

 NAY:

Roger B. Jacobs

Ridgeley Hutchinson

Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:

The Chair

{00129215.D0C}

Josbua Hodes

thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Kean Univ. Basement -3/21/13
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Forra MT-XXXX 09/02 ' NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSFORTATION " PRRMITNO D-082-1-12-G015430
DESTRIBUTION: COUNTY UNION

ORIG~ PERMITTER . DRAINAGE PERMIT MUNICIPALITY  UNION TWE.
I Cogry - REGION FILY ROUTR NO NIz
1 Copy ~ FIELL INSPECTOR The regieired feo st cecompany this permit Permit § 4
1 Copy - MARNT, FOREMAN lthar by meney arder or check, papable o the Check# } qoaqg\
New Jersey Dapurtment of Transportation Tinte tectcived L
~CASH WILE, NOT BE ACCEPTED-
FzE f‘ [sad LI LT 0%
PERMITTEE: e d WL
KEAN UNIVERSITY Lz 23,
PRYLLIS A, DUKR . -
1000 MORKIS AVENUE Raglong Oparstions Mol
UNION, NJ 09083 - Pasnll Unit

You are hereby grented permission for  DRAINAGE FACILITISS  on BOYH sldesof Route Mo, NIE2
atibe fotlowing locatfon{s);  Creen Lans '
fu UNIONTWE, County of URION

THIS PERMIT AUTHORIZES:

Discharging storm water via pipe to the existing 27" main located bementh Rt §2 in confjunctica with redevelopment of the property
consisting of Block 105, Lot 13& 4. Under existing conditions, storm water is discharged ty the main via overland flow,
Redevelopment of the property will reduce iis impetvious gurface coveraga therehy reducing the amoumt of #torm water discharged
to the roain.

Approved plang for ths ab tigned profect nttech & heseto and rado & park hrzeof ars entitlod:

Any tuestions, please contact Kyle Rowunsaville at (973) 601-6627. Contact $73-714-5513 72 hours priorto starting work
Application and plans dated received: 7115/2011.. Application and plens dated received: 7/1 51201t

Propesty deed with BMP Mainienance sehedule recorded on it mousi be reserved prior to final acceptance being granted
by the Departinent.
1, we, the undenlpned, henwith agres o aéoept end comply withthe following:

“The periait 1t fior the deaigated purp : ‘,.!hhnlmhmmmmmm-ﬂmtwmﬂmuwmhmmkm
“fue costof ion wok aud ial will be entirely st the Permnitive's expense. “The Department will not ehare s any expense-whatiocver of do any
coatnirtion work pertainiag 1o thiv projeet. .

At popatruction work suthorized hercin witl conform with the rules arit oputations of the New Jersey Deparment of Transportation xeg conditions nchided
hareln s on the reverse side of thls form

ATl work will be done to the satiniietinn of the Dep
Na:hnaaoulwaﬁammynw&ﬂmﬁmwimm-;mmmmﬂjncm

No work i connsotion with thiy peoit will bo started until it is approved exd dsucd, Notice will be given tn the epprropriat: Region pffice 48-hours prior to
semmencing work.

mﬂi-ommﬁmwmkmdwﬁ;pmﬁilmpm notifcation sl Eéglmwﬂxm!unﬁmuﬂmthewm‘khubmwmplmmﬁia ready for fenl
jespection xnd spproval, by the Depattmant.

Enclosed ia the raquired fes, in the smountof §50.00 paysbiz to the New-Jeenoy Depariment of Treniporietion,

[£a pertitin prantzd, § or we agros 1o comply ﬁﬁmmmmmdmuwmwmpmmmm“mm in the conditions incladed
thevein and o the toveese xide of this fonm, T wddifion, Lorwo \mderstand thet NLS.A, 27:7-44.] trakes sy violation of the provielons of the permit subject to &
fing Mumdinsﬂﬂbﬂwdﬁy)mddmwﬁon for tha costs of prosscurtion as well as sivil action fire Tespass to temove any non-conforming wss. This
permt canctls and puperssdes sy and ol DRAINAGE st tha sbove Tocatim sad as shovwn an the sttrched plan..

IZ-IQIH ﬂz@ i}h,eﬂ,, “Duegror, ,
{Piatz) (Signetore and Title of Agent) .

Y

B0 NOT WRITE BELOW
Mpemﬁlisgmwbjmwﬂnmm.mim,mnﬂmlﬁmmﬁ:&b«rﬁnmﬁmdnwnoﬁ&l ble peamission of privilegs. A copy
withdwumpwﬁngplmshﬂbendhbbmﬁmdeemﬁlﬂmpmjmmmnpm

r
PHRMITNO.  D-082-1-12-0015430 . APPROVED BY
i _(?__ l?d IQ FOR  JOHN GANWYLER
DATE TITLE REGIONAL MAINTENANCE ENGINEER, NORTH REGION

UNLESS THE WORK AUTHORLZED UNDER TEIS FERMIT 15 COMPLETE WITHIN ONE YEAR OF DATE OF
ISSUE, OR THE PERMIT IS EXTENDED WITHIN THAT TIME, THIS PERMIT SHALL BECOME NULL AND
VOID.CONDITIONS ROUNSAVILLE

New Jersey Is An Egual Opportunity Employer @ Printed on Recycled and Recyclable Paper



PROTECTION FROM SUITE

The permittes-shall defend, indemmify, protect and snve harmiless the State and its agents, servants, and esployecs from and

against eny and al} suits, claims, losses, demands, o7 durnages of whatever kind or naturs arising out of or claimed to arisc outof,
any-negligent act, etror, or omission of the permitics, iis agents, servants, and employees in the purformance of the wotk coversd  **
by thia permit.

FROTECTION OF THE TRAVELING PUBLIC
The pertities shatl properly safeguard alt work performed unger this permit, aod during hours of darkness maintain sufficient
warning Hghts or employ nther measures necegary foor the publics protection.

PROTECTION OF STRUCTURES

There shall bs no interference with any stractures on, over or under the highway. The existing cross section and drainngs of the
highway shall noi be disturbed. The Tongitudingl flow of water slong the gutter tine must pot be interrpted, Tt shali be the
responsibility of the owner to make adoqunts provision for il trensverse, Iatoral imd longituedinal drainage affected by bis
construction

SETTLEMENT OR DISLOCATION

“The permittee shall take all pecessary precautions 1o provent settlement or dislozutions of, or damags to existing adjacent roadways
or other factlities. I such roadways or facilities ho dnmeged by or 288 result of the work, they sheil be repaired, replaced or
otherwise restored to a condition as good as prevailed at the time the project staried, by and a1 the expense of tha permitice.

MANHOLES, INLETS, AND CATCH BASING
Concrets for the foundation of brick, conerets Elock or conemte mankoles, inlets and catch basing shall be Class Iy, For the wall
of concrete inlets, manholes and cadch busins, the concrete ghall be Clasz C. Top slabs, if recuizad shall be of Class B Contmete,

INSTALLATION OF PIPES

Pipe must oot protrade beyond the insids walls of the Highway drainnge structurs and space between wall and pipe is 1o be

chinked with 1.2 Portland Cement Meostar. The Department, undet ho circumstences, will bear any pant of the expense of the
inutaHation of pipe which may be necessary, nor will it furnish ot place fill materiel elther within vight-of-way of the hiphway or
outside of it. The permittes may be reguired to construct manbioles, cutch basing or both whers drainage conditions or future "
maintenance conditions may be such that these structures &r6 neceasary. i

EXCAVATION AND RESTORATION

Al excavations shall be completely backfilied and the excavsied material shall be replaced. Compaction shall be sccomplished by
snechamical tamping or as otherwine directed. Additiona! material shall be supplied when a deficiency ccouts, 1€ the Inepector
cotsiders the excavated material unsatisfhetory for ‘Sacldill, approved material shall be supplisd and the cxesss unapproved
material removed from the site, AN backfill materials shatl be placed in lifts not exceeding 12 inches in depth, molstened, i
directed, and cach it shell be enexgeihnﬂytamyedamﬁlmmoughlymmpam Upnncnmpleﬂonofwmkﬂwmdmnbedshm
be properly restored and all exeoas material, if any, shali be remaved. In pavemont areas, if immodiate replecement or permiasat
pavement is not feasible, the excavation ghall be backfilled and consolideted as specified sbove, after whick not less than two Z)
inches of cold patch material shat] be placed to gradn. Temporary paverosat must be maintained in a condition sutisfactory to
Department of Transportation until permaneat pavement restoration has been completed.

MATERIALS AND WORKMANSTHHE

Materials and workmenship used in construction affecting Highway property shail be in sccordance with the Department’s
Standard Specifications and are suiject 1o inspection and approvat of the Department of Transportation, Where conditions warrent,
the Department may assign an ingpector o the project a1 the cxpense of the permitice. ‘Tha Departepent shall reserve the right 1o
demand from the applicant as 8 condition of eny permit, 8 bond or certified chack in an smount sufficient to guarsntee or ingure
the proper maintenance aod restoration of the area disturbed,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS
The Department of Transporiztion may impose special conditions in speoial caser.

DRAINAGE RIGHTS
Where appurtennt drainage rights or casements have been aequired by the State, no construction shall take place which will
adveracty affect these riphts.

VIOLATIONS .\
Violation of any of the covensnts and conditions contzined herein snd on the reverse side of this form will be cause for summaery
revocation of permit and severage of the conuection. Not withstamding complets complisnce with the terms of this agreement, and

if the interest of the State 50 requires, the right is reserved 1o revoke this permit inchuding a1l privileges end permission graneed
hereunder upon 30 days notification.

New Jersep Is An Equal Opportunity Emplayer # Printed on Recycled and Recyclable Paper
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4,
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ABDITIONAYL TRAFFIC SARETY CONDYTIONS
Sheet L-of 1

Permit #: D 1206813438

The Permittes slall 5ot iiterfere with the normal flow of treflic, reduce the number of traffic nues, or change any
traffic pettern prior ¢o 9:00 A.M. or beyond 3:30 P.M. on weekdays and afl day on Satarday, Sunday, and
holideys; unless spectically approved by the Reglonal Malutenance Eagineer,

The lotal police department shouid be notified by the Peymittes befure starting sny construction that may Interfers .
with trafite. .

Materisl cannot be stored nor equipment parked within the State's Hight of Way except a3 neceysery during actunt

working operations.
Lane widihs end fraffic control devices shzll be In conformance to the trafile control plaa.

‘The Permittee is responutble for lnstailing snd maintaining approved construction warping sigea. All signa and
other protective devices, anless otherwlse dlrected, shall conply with the requirements of the corrent edltion of the
*Manus! o Uniform Trafic Control Devices for Streets aud Bighways' issued by the Federal Highway
Afministration (FHA).

Competent unifermed trafie divectors shell be employed at avery lovation where the cortractor's squipment 1y
worldeg immedintely adjacent to, or ls exteving, seaving or crossing setive traffic laves, The trafile divectnys, shall
be exployed continuousty for the full time anch conditions exist,

In ihie event of severe wenther, or exigent clrernstance, the Depariment shall requice the Permitiee to take
whatever steps sectasery to veoure the traveled way for cmergenty operations. Al wark on the roadeay shall stop
and be cleared of all squipment and materizl. The area shall be ectired o sllow safe passepe as to aot interfore
with Department emergeicy oporations.

Al employees 2ndior supervisars engaged in a work operstion which exposes them to the motoriog piblic, or o a
hazerdous road condition, or whenever an employee or supervisor is within the State Right of Way (shoulder, etz.)
or within a conei-in area, will wear the proper safety apparel, which Includes a safety vest.

No Eane closares will bz permitted on she followleg holidays:
*Easter Sunday (hecludiog 6:00 AM Ssturday until Neon Mondxy
*Ngemorin? Day (SeeNote Below)
«July 4th {See Note Below)
*Lahor Day  {See Note Below)
*Election Bay (6:60 AM uniil 8;00 PAD)
*Thaoksgiving Day (Sev Note Below)
*Christmas Bay {See Note Below)
*New Yesr's sy {Soe Note Below)

NOTE:
f Holiday Palls On: No Lane Closures Permitied:
Sunday or Monday 6:00 AW Friday antll Noon Toeadsy
Toesday 6:00 AM Priday untii Noon Wednesdsy
Wednesday 6:00 AM Taesday until Neon Thursday
Thursday 00 AM Wednesdny untl] Noon Mondny
Friday ox Satarday §:40 AM Thursday untll Noon Monday

The Permits office (073 G01-6625) is to be notified 2 rolnimamn &1 72 hours (3 Department Business days) before the
start of work covered by this permit by faxiog form TIR-1. All traffic restrictions, inclading lape width reductiony,
lane closures, and detonrs ure subject to the spproval of the Permits silice, Reghons} Traffic Engineer, and the
Buarean of Traillk: Opernéions.

1zfe) Yol
DATE SEINATURE OF PERMITTEE

i
i

e



1

2

3

4.

5

6.

8.

9.

10.

11,

=
DRAINAGE CONBTIONS ‘
Shectof 2

Permit #: -082-1-12-0015430

At least T2 hours (3 Departoent Businéss days) prior o beginning work anthorized in this permiz,
the North Region Office shall be nolified at 973 601-6625 to schiedule 2 pre-censtraction conference.
The One-Cail Confirmation number shall be provided at this fme in order to validate the permit.
‘Twenty-forx hour key-contact personnel emergency phoas numbers shall also be provided. The

-permittes paust provide the municipality with u copy of the permit aftex it Is issued by the

Bepartment.

All works shatl be performed in accordance with the attached entitled, "Additional Troffic Safety
Conditions,®

The Department reserves the right to modify these conditions to suit unforeseen traffle snd/or fled
conditions.

Pavement, aud all concrete curb and-sidewall, including handlcap ramps, shall be constracted in
accordance with the stiached detalls, at the locations indicated on the plans.

The permittee shall be responsiple for all full time Inssection costs inturred by the Department
beyond 2 hours per day. Overtime costs, if applicable, are to be prepald by e permittee.

Any damages to Etate lighway signal detection equipment or other electzical fucllities 45 & result of
the persaittee's work skall be repaired. Shoulé the Department elect to perform the work, the
permittee shall puy Sor the cost of repairs. The perméttee shall notify North Region Operations at
973 601-G625 ot Teast 72 hours prior to any construction affecting any Department underground o
ntility‘ il

All snrfaces disturbed duxing the construction shall be restored to original condition or better,
Exlsting crozs slopes and gatter grades shall be meintained, AY grass areus gre to be landscaped
with topsoil, fertilizer and seed, ot topsoil and sod. The Pecmittee ix respunsible for the replacement
of aHi trafilc stripes in kind which were removed and or distorted by the constraciion of items
covered under this permit, Any trees or shrahs affected by the instellation of the propesnd which die
vrithin one (1) year are to be replaced. .

Coperete items shadl not be constructed within the Highway right of way from Noversber ist until
March 15th. .

BackfD in a¥ openings will be of an approved materiel ot inferlor to bank zua sand o gravel,
mechanicsHy tamped in Jayers of (6"} inches.

If immediate replacercent of permancat pavement ie not fersible, the daify temporary restoration
shall conslst of Rot less than four (4"") inches of bifvnsinous concrete consoliduted to highway grade,
The temporsry pavement shail bo madntained in 2 good condition untll permanent restoration Is
made. : :

Pavement excavated or disturbed fs to be replaced in kind and in depth unless otherwise stipulated.

lz!q,u .
'DATE CNA OF PERMITTEE

2 d



BRAINAGE CONDYFIONS .
Shest 2 of 2

1% Permonent pavement restorafion shall cansist of:
A, * Concrete Base Course
v Bitnminous Conerete Surfage Course - Mix X - ‘

s

'+ Bitnmineuy Stabilized Base Course - Mix 1~

B . ¥ Dense Graded Aggregate Base Course

" of Subbase, Soil Apgregate Type I - o
" Compacted Gravel -

13, The guster and shoulder grades shall not be aitered unless otherwise spproved, and the entire .
nutaliation shall be 5o constructed so thet no ponding of water will result. ‘

14, Prior to placement of (he permanent pavement, the existing pavezjent shall be saw cut to a siraight
and vertical edge. All exposed edges shalk ke tack coated prior to plocement of bituminous concrete,

15 All areas disturbed are to be restored to originel condition. All grass areas are to be lendacaped
: with topsoil, fertilizer and seed or toproll and sod.

16, The permitiee is responsible for the replacerzent of 22 traffic stripes in kind which are removed
andfor distorted by the construction, The palnt specifications and placement must agree with the
Department's Tatest standard specifications.

17, In the event of snow alert, the Depariment shall require the contractor to take wintever steps
necessary to secure the traveled way for saow removal oprations.

18. Excavatiors shall be properly shored, braced, and sheathed in sccordane: with OSHA standards.

19, Keadwails, inlets, uad manholes shall be constructed in accerdance with the sttached detpils. Inlets
converted to mankoles shall be necomplished using Campbell Poundsy Cnsting N0.1232-2, or
equivalent,

20, Exlsting cxstings which are to be removed or replaced are to be turned over to the Department. Call
this office at 973 601-64525 to make the necessary prrangements.

21, Al drainage pipe saall comply to the Iatest Department Specifieations.
22, Existing inlets which are to be removed, shell be removed fin their entirety.

23. After granting permission and muling of mch openings or exeavations the Pormittee will properly

" restore to the satisfaction of the Department say portion of sabd highway system which it may aave
disterbed end will majntain it to the aatisfaction of the Commissioner of the Department from suy
settiement, depression, or Inconsistencies regulting from this worl.

24. The Department's interpretation of conditions shell govern ln any dispute concerning work covered N
by this permit, The Departent will not be responsihie for any ersors or omissioas appearing on
the plan. ‘ ’

25, This pesmit dees ot relieve the permitiee from ebtaining neceisary permits from other agencies.

2fofu M
DATE . SIGNATURE ORF PERMITTEE




‘ éTQﬁMWATéR THEATNMENT BQLWIONQ
www.AgquaShieldinc.com

Capability of the Aqua-Swirl® Concentrator to
Remove Trach from Stormwater Runoff

June 27, 2012

The purpose of this dueument is to demonstrate the capability of the Aqua-Swirl® Concentrator to capture
trash from stormwater runoff, Trash is defined herein as material having a prinimom dismester of 5 '
roilHmeters (mm). Discussions pertaining fo Mode of Operation, General Eguipment Design, Particle
Serting Velocity Caloulntions, Field Testiug, Field Observations, and Inspections snd Maintenence are
provided below.

MODE of CPERATION

The Aqua-Swirl is 2 custom engineered, post-construction flow-throngh stormwater ireatwment system
designed fo remove trash, sediment, floating debris and free-floating oil by uiitizing swirl technology, or
hydrodynamic vortex-enhanced sedimentation separation (Figure 1}, The United States patent
“Dirainnwater Treatment System for Use in a Horzontal Passegewsy,” U.S. Pstent No. 6,190,545 applies

to the Aqua-Swirl™;

Mua-&wiﬁ"

Aquatile
AIGRMPATLR TREATNERY witeyevIai

Figure 1. Diagram of Aqua-Swinl® showing civeular flow of water in the swird chamber.
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Aqua-Swirl® technolopy has no moving purts and operatzs on gravity flow or movemsent of the
stormywater rnf¥ entering the structure. Operation beging when storuwater enters the swirl shamber of
" the Aqua-Swirl® device by means of ifs tangential inlet pipe therehy inducing a cireular (swirl or vortex)
fiow pattern. The switl chamber represents the effective treatment ares of the device whereby both the
capture and storage of materials is accomplished, A sombination of gravitational and hydrodynamic dreg
forces results in solids dropping ont of the flow mmd migrating to the center of the swirl chamber where
velocities are the lowest. Floatables and trash remain in the swirl chamber behind an arched inner baffle

' that extends partially downward into the swir] chamber, This baffle serves to retain fleatablo materials
and trash in the swirl chantber, ‘The treated flow exits the Aqua-Swirl® behind the arched inner beffle. The
top of the baffle is sealed ncross the treatment chamnel to elimirate floatable pollutanis from escaping the
swirl chember, A vent pipe is extended up the riser to expose the backside of the bafile to afmaospheric
conditions, thus preventing a siphon from forming at the bottom of the bafile.

GENERAL EQUIPMENT DESIGN

The Aqua-Swir!® can operste in sither an “offline” or “inline” (“online”) configuration. The inline design
uses an infernal conveyanue How diversion (CFDY) design. The Aqua-Swirl® is available with meximum
stub-out inner pips dismeters for offfine systems ranging from 7.61 to 22.52 inches (193 to 572 mum)
depending on mode] size. The CFD models nse inter pipe dismeiers of 11.97 to 45.05 inches (304 to
1,144 mum). These pipe dismeters will allow for the conveyance of most trash sized particles and debris

contained in stormwater runoff

The dinmeter of the swirl cheniber varies from 2.5 to 12 feet (0.7 to 3.6 meters) depending on model size.
The height of ¢ standard swirl chember ranges from 8.67 to 9.5 fest (2.64 10 2.9 meters) and the length of
the acoess risers are influenced by the final Surface snd drainage pipe clevations of the site, The bottom of
the switl chamber is approximately 5.67 feet (1.73 meters) below the invert of the inlet pips which
provides water and sediment storage within the swirl chaniber.

Teble | summuarizes the availeble Agus-Swirl® models, swirl chamber inner dimneters, and storage
capacities for irash/oil and sediment.

Table 1. Aqua-Swirl® Standard Models and Storage Capacities

Aqua-Swint® | Svirl Clmmber Trasiy0Od Storage | Secizment Storage
Modél Inper Diameter Capﬁcfty Lppacley
) (ft/mm) D {1y
AS-2 2507762 ) T 1
AS-3 3257991 o 20
AS-4 425/ 1,295 ‘ 190 32
AS.5 5.00/1,524 270 45
AS S 6.00/ 1,829 390 &5
s o 3 3 L .54{# i S 90
~AS8 | 800/2438 | U D L
AT EATIFD K2 < N Bt (I r
AS-10 10,00 73,048 1,130 180
AS-12 12.00/3,658 1,698 2170
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While the Aqua-Swirl® is not designed to operate identically to an oil-water separatur, the technology
dogs provide a high level of treatment for fhe capture and retention of free-floating oil. Oil is retained in
the swirl chember behind the arched inner baffle in a similar means by which other floatables ere retained

in the swisl chamber,

The Aqua-Svwirl® is also designed so that it can casily be tised for retrofit applications. When the invert of
the inlet znd omtlet pipes of the Aqua-Swirl® is positioned a1 the same elevation, the unit can easily be
connevted directly o the existing storm conveyance drainspe system.

PARTICLE SET-TLING VELOCITY CALCULATIONS

Since hydrodynsmic separators sach as the Aqua-Swirl® wtilize graviational forces as the primary means
of sediment removal, its performance (removal efficiency) will improve given a larger particle of the
same specific gravity. This functionality can be calculated by nzing the Peclet number as 2 yeans to scale
performance between various sized particies. The Peclet numiber is g function of:

Flow {Q),

Horizontal flow dimension {Siameter, 1),

Yertical fow dimension {depth, h}, and

Settling velocity (V, compated by Stoke’s Law) of a given sized particle.

2 % & 0

The following equation is used to derive the Peclet mmber (Pe):
Pew{D*H*V3}/Q

Yn, vrder fo evalugte Aqua-Swirl® performance aguinst suspended sediment, a scaled Aqua-Switl” Model
AS-5 was independently tested by the Civil Engineering Department of Tennessee Technological
Univessity. This Jaboratory study demonsirated that the Aqua-Swirl® achieved 89% sediment removal
sfficiency ot & flowrate of 0.20 cebic foet per second {efs) agrinst teil sediment manufactared by U8,
Silica, OK-110 siliva sand. The OK-110 material bag & specific grevity of 2.65 and exhibits » particulate
gradation from 50 to 150 micrens (uim, or 0.05 to 0.15 mm}, The reported median particle size (dy) of

OK-110 is 110 pm (0.11 mem).
From Stole’s Law, the scttling velocity of 4 110 pm particle with a specific gravity ©f 2,65 is 0.027 fi/sec.

The inner dizmeter of the swirl chamber of the tested Aqua-Swirl® unit is 3.3 fiset, huving a depth of 3.83
foct from the inlet pipe invert to the floor of the unit. Thus, the Peclet number at a flowrate of 0.20 cfs is

commrted s follows:
Pe~ (3.3¥3.83%0.027) / 0.20
Pe= 171 o
The settling velotity for & 5 mm (5,000,:m) perticle with 2 specific gravity of 2.65 is established at 0,9455
fiisec. Given the Pe of 1.71 et 0.20 cfs, the flowrate () at which the AS-3 should remove 89% of 5 mm
particles is computed as:

Q= (3.3%1.83%0.9455) / 1.1
Q = 8.9%f%
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The maximwm hydraulic capacity of the tested unit was 1.80 cfs. If the sediment removal efficiency
petformante curve genersted from the fest data is adjusted for 5 mm particles, the Aqua-§wirl® exhibits ‘
99% sediment removal of those particles with & specific gravity of 2.65 up fo the unit’s maximum
hydranlic capacity. '

fn order to ocount for floatables and organic material in the runoff, the specific gravity of the 5 mm
particle can be lowered to 1,85, The settling velovity then decreases to 4856 f/sec from the V, cited
above. The flowrate (Q) then becomes 180 ofs and equal to the maximm hydraulic cepacity of the teyted

unit.
It is evident fhrough the perticle setifing velocity calculations that the Aqua-8wiri® can achieve 89%

removal of trash particies of at least 5 min in diameter against influent materials having a specific gravity
of 1.85 or grester up to the maximum hydraulic capacity of the-device,

ACUA-SWIRL® FIELD TESTING

An Aqua-Swirl® Model AS-5 was independently field tested in Silver Spring, Maryland (metro
Washingten D.C.) over a 27 month period in accordance with the Technology Accepiance Reciprogity
Partnership (TARP) Tier I field testing protocols. Testing was performed from Wearch 2009 to Fune 2011,
The purpose of the AS-5 field test is to gain technology verification by the New Jersey Corporation for
Advanced Technology (NJCAT), followed by Field Test Certification by the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection (NIDEP). The AS-5 demonstrated a net annual T 58 removal efficiency of 85%

agrinst a clay loam textared sediment.

All particles size distribution (PSD) enalyses were performed by the serial filtration method, Influent PSD
duta is summatized below in Table 2, Data indicates that 94% of the particulate is finer grained then 560
pm (0.5 mm), while 72% of the particulate is less than 63 pm {0.063 mm) in size. Thus, the influent dgy is
fess than 63 pm. Organic meterial in the infiveat averages 33.2% of the TSS concentraticn. In general,
organic material will have & specific grevity of 1.0 or less, The TSS removal efficiency of the AS-5
remained high while operating in the presence of approximately 30% {floatable) orgenic material,

Table 2. AS-5 Influent PSD Summnary
(values listed as percent finer than each sieve/filter)

Sterm | LO0O a | S00pm | 25¢mm | 123am (63 pm | 1S pm
/122010 10060 | 9741 9248 84.44 6296 | 0.00
12/12010 | 10000 816 80.09 87.19 7371 | 6.0
121172610 1 100.00 52,04 01.59 85.08 7RS56 1 000
Avernge | 10000 8420 9162 85.57 TL75 | oM
Sand Silt

The AS-5 Beld test demonsirated hat the Aqua-Swirl® is very effective at removing sead and silt sized
particles as well as fioatable organic material from stormwater runoff, Given these shilities, the Aqua-
Swirl® technology will effectively remove larger sized particles including tresh and floatable debris from

runoif.
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AQUA-SWIRL® FYELD OBSERVATIONS

Numerous field abservation examyles are available to demonstrate that the Aqua-Swirl® is capable of
capturing and retaining gross poliutants and floatables. Figures 2,3 and 4 et example site photographs
that clearty support the trash capture and retention capabilities of the Aqua-§wirl® technology.

«

Figure 2, Floatables in swirl chember of an AS-7. The effluent pipe is Jocated on the left side of the photograph and
below the vent pipe visible also on the loft side of the swirl ehamber.

Figure 3. Trash and floatables in an AS-6. Vent pipe is vigible in the bettom of the photograph,
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Figure 4. Tragh snd flostables in an AS8-S. Vent pipe is at the fop of the photograph.
INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE

The Aqua-Swirl® is easily inspected and maintained from the ground surface without the need to enter the
swirl chamber. The gwir] chamber is direcily observed and accessible through the riser with no
ingccessible chambrers dseper within fhe device, As shown in the phctographs above, materials are casily
viewed within the swirl ireatment chamber, A veowum frack is typicafly used for maintonancs event, Most
maintenancs events can be completed in less than 30 minutes provided that there are no necess restrictions
to the device itself. Additiona] information concerning inspections end malntenanice can be provided.

CONCLUSIQONS

As evident fiom the information provided herein, Aqua-Swiri® technology can schieve & very high level
of pexformance for the removal of trash and sediment from stormwater tonoff. The practicality of the
Atua-Swirl® design also allows for the facilitation of inspections and maintenance ovents thereby
meximizing long ferm fupctionality snd minimizing eperational eosts.

DDA TERTMENT GELATHEwE
wwwnAguashieldinccom

AgquaBhieid,™ Inc.
2765 Kenseite Drive
Chattenoogy, Feanegses 37343
{B85) 344-9044
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Table 2. Acus-Filier™ Stormwater Filtration Systems Sizing Chart-

Ague-Fltey™ ‘i:,fﬁfgg?ﬁ Filtratlon  JApprox. 'i‘reahlgmz! Stab-Dut Pipe
Diodel T e |Chamber Length | Traix Length® | Outer Diameter
5 {8} @) G}
AF-3.1 8.5 9.6 16 4
AF-32 Lo 120 18 6
AF-33 1.5 143 21 '3
AF 4.4 2.0 16.6 24 10
AF-45 25 18.7 2% 12
AF-4.6 3.0 210 31 12
AF- 5. , 35 7.8 34 12
AF-53% 4.0 259 36 12
AF-63 | 4.5 282 . 38 12
AF+6.10 50 30.5 40 i2
AF-6.11 55 28 42 14
AF 612 66 356 45 14
* AF mr-?L >60 Custom Custony -
Righer wEicr quality Tiered fluw raies ¢80 b6 iR HIOpIE JHlies Chi WIS
Notes:

{1} The Water Quality Filtered Flow Rate is cnginected to met or exoeed the water quality criteria
established by local regulations. These systems are designed fo caphme the water-bome
costtarmnants associated with fine sediment, nutriests, and metals,

(J) The Aqua-Filter™ Stormwater Filtmtion System is a two {2}componcnt frestment train
wilizing are Agua-Swirl™ & Filter Chamber.

The filter medin of the Aqua-Filter™ Stormwater Filtration System is initially Hight tas or white
" in color. When the media tarns black it has become saturated from pollutant loading and
requires replacement. Replacement of the filter media typically requires entry into the filter
chamber by one of a two member maintenance crew. Confined space cniry precantions should
be taken by the maintenance crow when removing and replacing the filters. The filter 1oedia
does pot allow captured contaminants to be released once shsorbed into the material. The spent
filters and sediment generally do not require any special treatment or handling for disposal, All



Agua-Swirl™
Inspection and Maintenance Manual for BMP Owners

Sile Name: Change in cwnership gince lastinspection’ Y N

Owner Name:

Owner Adrress:

Cramier Phone Number;

Emergency Phone Numbsr:
Location: ©

Dafer

Time:

Inspector Narne:

Ficatable Debris and Ol
1. Remove marhole id fo expoge Hquid sirface of Aqua-Swiri™,

2. Remove finatabie detrie with basked or net if any present.

3, If ol Js present, measure its depth, Clean iquids from systern if 1727 or more ol s present (see "Cleaning™ Figure 5),

Note: Watst it an Aqua-Swirl™ can appaar black like ol due to the dark body of the surrounding structurs. Ofl appoers
darker than water In the system and Is ususily aceompaniod by debris {o.g. Styrofoam, efe.) with olwious signs of off staing,
The depth of oll can ba msasured with an olifwater interface probe, & stadis rod with water phyllc pasta,

a eoliwasa, or by simply collecting & represontutive sample with a Jar attachsd to a red.

Sediment Accumnulation

Make measurements a8 follows (see Flgures 1 and 2):
1. Lower measuiing device fi.e, stadia rod) into Aqua-Swil™ throught service access provided. (Ses Flgure 2)
2. Recort distance to top fo sediment pile (ink

3. Record distancs Yo top of water (in):

4, Coloulate distance to sadiment minus distance to water (ink
&, Schadule deaning if value in step 4 Js 30" or lese. {Ses Figura 3),

Figurs ¥ Flgure 2

Aguz-Swird™ §{ and M Manual
Page 1



Diversion Structures - T : ' S
# a diversion structure is present on the site, this should be inspected for the following ltems.
1. Inspect weir or other structure for structural decay or damage, Weirs are more susceptible to damage than off-set piping and should
ba chacked o ronfirn that they are not crumbling, in the ease of concrele o brick welrs, or decaying If a steel welr was used.

2. Inspect diversion sttuchus and by-puss piping for signs of structural damage or blockagae from debris or sediment accumulation.

3, Moasure elevations on dversion welr of piping to enstire i is consistent with sfte plan design.

4. Inkpactdownstriars structure In diversion system for signs of blockage or structural fallure,

Schedule cleaning with loca! vaclor company or AquaShield™'s Mainfenance Department to
mmove sediments, oils, and ofher loatable polivtants with a vactor trafler, The captured
sudiment generally does not requlire ary specis] fresiment or hendling for disposal, AquaShield
recommends that al matedsls removed duringthe malntanance process be handled and
disposed of Iy secordance with Iocal and state requirements.

L i
During Constrirction
Inspest the Aqua-Swirl™ every three months and clean the system a5 needed: Tha Agua.Swil™ should be inspected and cleaned at the
end of construction regandless of whether it has reached its sediment or off storage capacity.

First Year Post-Construction

Inspect the Agua-Swit]™ every three morths and clean the system ae needed.
Inspect and clean the system once annually regandless of whether It has reached its sediment ot floatable pollutard storage capacily.

Sacond and Subsequent Years Post-Construction ,

If the Agua-Swirl™ did not reach full sedimant or foatable pollutent capacity in the First Year Past.-Construction, the system can be
inspacied and cleanad snce annually,

i the Aqua-Swiri™ raached full sediment or fioatable pollitant capacily iy leas than 12 months in the First Year Post-Caonstruction, the
systern should be Inspected onse evary six manths and cleansd as needed. The Agua-Swin™ should be cleaned annually regandless of
whether il rezches its sediment or fioatable pollulant capacity,

Bypass Structures
Bypass structures should be inspected whenever the Aqua-Swirl™ is Inspecied and mairtained as nesded,

Aqua-Swiri™ | and M Maraa)
Page 2



Company Name:

Street Address:

iy, State, Zipr

Conlact:

Office Phone:

Mobile Phona:

Fager:

Date of cleaning: {Nexd inspection should be 3 months from this date for the fivet year).

Time of clegning:

Date of next Inspection:

Floatable dabrs present {Y/N)?

OF present (YIN)? Qil depth Gnches):

Any struciura) damage?

Any evidence of struchural waar? ¥ N Whera?
dors presant? ‘ Y N Destribe:
Any plugaing? ¥ N Destribe:
Agua-Swiri™ 1 and M Manual
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Additional Comments andior Actions o Be Taken

Time Framg

NOTES:

1. Attach site plan showing Aqua-Swirl™ location.
2. Attach detall drawing showing Agua-Swird™ dimensions ahd model number,
3, i a diversion structurs iz used, atiach details showing basic deelgn and elovetions,

Aqua-Swirl™ ] and M NManual
Fago 4



Date Construction Started:

Date Construction Ended:

inspect mnd Claan as X x X
Needad
inepeet Bypasr Binichures .
i appikabie) and Maintaln X X X X
Az Needed
Cle L
an Syxte x

*The Agua-Switl ™ should bu cleanad once a year regardiess of whether it has reached full palhutast
storage capacily. In addition, the system should be clsaned at the end of construction regardiess

of whether it has reach full polluiant sturage capadiy.

" : - " Month :
Activity 1 2 ] 4 5 [ 7 F3 3 e r .
tnspect and Closn ax ;
Nended x X . :
Inspect Bypass Sirucfures .
{ appiinabia} and Mnintels X % ) )
An Needed
Chloan -
Bystem )

* The Aqua-Swiri™ thould be cleaned oneé a yeer regandiess of whether it has reached &l pofiutant
Elurage capacity, :

S S YA oSt SRR

Actvity . 1 z 3 4 5 ] 7 ) ] 10 1] 12 |
inspnet and Cloan ns b
Keeded*
ruspact Byoask Structurec
(if sppEcable) amd Mainkain b
A5 Nesded
Clean System® x*

*“if the Aqua-Switi™ did not resch full sediment or floatable pollufant capacity In the Eirst Year Post-Construction, the system can be inspscted and

cleaned once annusfly,
If the Aqua-Swil™ reached full sediment or fioatable pollutant cepacily in less than 12 montha In the First Year

Posi-Construction, the system should be inspected once svery s monthg (more frequently If past history watrants} and cleaned as needed. The
Aqua-Swid™ should be tleansd annually regardiess of whether it reaches its spdiment or floatable polutant capacity,

Agus-Swirt™ | and M Manwal
Page b
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Prepared by:

PHILIP J. MORIN II, ESQ.
DEED OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANT

THIS DEED OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANT is made as ¢f this m&ay of April, 2013 by
the NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY (the "LANDLORD"), who owns
property located at 1040 Morris Avenue, Block 105, Lot 13 and 14 ("Property™) as well as KEAN
UNIVERSITY (the "TENANT") who leases the Property pursuant to the 1998 B Agreement
identified in the resolution attached hereto as Exhibit "A", to the STATE OF NEW JERSEY,

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ("STATE");

WITNESSETH:

- Purpose. This Restrictive Covenant is being provided by the LANDLORD, and wilt be
maintained by the TENANT, or future occupants, as part of a requirement by the STATE for a
connection and discharge storm water drainage permit. In consideration of being permitted to
discharge storm water via a pipe to an existing sewer main that is currently located under Route 82,
thé TENANT hereby agrees to abide by the covenants, terms and conditions as set forth in this Deed
of Restrictive Covenant and Exhibit "B" annexed hereto

Said connection is being done in conjunction with the redevelolpment of the Property. The

New Jersey Department of Transportation has approved such connection and discharge pursuant to

Permit No. D-082-1-12-0015430, annexed hereto as Exhibit "B" and executed January 9, 2012.

{00129185.D0C}



Promises by Tenant: The TENANT hereby agrees that in conjunction and consideration of

permission to discharge storm water via a pipe to an existing sewer main, the TENANT has installed
and shall maintain an AQUA-SWIRL Model AS-8 Concentratorl(‘"EQUIPMENT“) for the purposes
of removing trash, sediment, floating debris and free-floating oil from storm water runoff. A éopy of
the owner's manual, including maintenance schedule is annexed hereto as Exhibit "C". If said
EQUIPMENT needs to be replaced, such new EQUIPMENT, or its functional equivalent, shall be
approved by the STATE and all terms and conditions herein shall be complied with by the

TENANT.

Promises by Landlord. The LANDLORD has agreed and consente& to the placing of this
restrictive covenant on the PROPERTY, however all maintenance obligations in complying with the
terms herein, shall rest solely with the TENANT, or future occupant.

Term. | This Deed of Restrictive Covenant shall apply to the Property immediately upon
recordation of this Deed and the TENANT shall comply with the restrictive covenants herein, and
shall abide by such maintenance schedule and best management practices to ensure correct opetation
of said storm water system. This Déed of Restrictive Covenant shall run with the land and remain on
said Property in perpetuity, or for as long as said storm water discharge pipe is connected to such
main.

Enforcement of Restrictions: The TENANT, and/or any future occupant, of the Property
shall submit any other information, documents, or certifications requested by the STATE, which
shall be deemed reasonably necessary to substantiate the TENANT'S (or any future occupant's)

continuing compliance with the provisions of the restrictions contained herein.

{001292185.D0C])



Signatures: The LANDLORD and TENANT sign this Deed of Restrictive Covenant as of the

date at the top of the first page.

WITNESS:

By:
Derek S. Hansel, Executive Director
on behalf of the NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
WITNESS:
By:
on behalf of Kean University
Record and Return to:

Philip J. Morin 11, Esq.

FLORIO, PERRUCCI, STEINHARDT & FADER -
218 Route 17 North, Suite 410 :
Rochelle Park, New Jersey 07662

{00129185.D0C}



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF NEW JERSEY )
) S.8.
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX )
On | , 2013, before me, the undersigned officer, ,

personally appeared and personally known to me (proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence)
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged him/herself to
be the of the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority, and that he/she
executed the same in his/her capacity, as such , being authorized to do so on
behalf of the corporation, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by
signing the namne of the corporation, and received a true and correct copy of this instrument and of all

other documents referred to therein.

Sworn and subscribed to
Before me this
day of , 2013

A Notary Public of New Jersey

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
STATE OF NEW JERSEY )
) S.8.:
COUNTY OF UNION )
On , 2013, before me, the undersigned officer, R

personally appeared and personally known to me (proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence)
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged him/herself to

be the of Kean University, and that he/she executed the same in his/her capacity,
as such , being authorized to do so on behalf of the corporation, executed the

foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing the name of the corporation, and
received a true and correct copy of this instrument and of all otber documents referred to therein.

{00129185.D0OC}



Sworn and subscribed 1o

Before me this
2013

day of ,

A Notary Public of New Jersey

{00129185.D0OC}



EXHIBIT IV

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF A FINANCIAL PRINTER

WHEREAS:  The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority™) was created
pursuant fo the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law, P.L. 1967, c.
271, N.1.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq., as amended and supplemented (the “Act”) andis
authorized to issue its obligations to provide a means for New Jersey public and
private colleges and universities to obtain financing to construct educational
facilities as defined in the; Act; and
WHEREAS:  The policies and procedures of the Authority with regard to the selection of
professionals are governed, inter alia, by Executive Order No. 26 (Whitman)
(“EO 26 which took effect on January 1, 1995 and which supersedes Executive
Orders No. 79 and 92 and Executive Order No. 37 (Corzine) (“EO 37”) which
took effect on November 25, 2006; and
WHERFEAS:  The Authority previously retained Wold Financial Printing (“Wold™) to provide
financial printing services; and
WHEREAS:  The Authority’s contract with Wold for such services will expire on April 26,
2013; and
WHEREAS: The staff of the Authority distributed a Request for Proposals for Financial
Printing services dated January 31, 2013 (the “RFP”) to eighteen (18) firms and
posted the RFP on the Authority’s and the State of New Jersey’s websites; and
WHEREAS:  The Authority received responses from four (4) firms (the “Responses™); and
WHEREAS: The Authority formed an Evaluation Committee consisting of the Authority’s
Project Manager and Associate Project Manager in accordance with Paragraph 13
of EO 37; and
WHEREAS:  The Evaluation Committee reviewed the Responses on the basis of factors
outlined in EO 26 and EO 37, including qualifications and experience, expertise,
price, references and geographic location; and
WHEREAS:.  The responsive firms and their respective scores and fees are as follows:
Firm Evaluator 1 Evaluator 2 Total Score Fee*
Wold Financial Printing 99.5 99 198.50 $1,000
ImageMaster, LLC 95.5 97 192.50 $1,180
MuniDeals 71 70 141 $2,500
McElwee & Quinn, LLC 60 61.5 121.5 $2,796

% Tee based on scenario requested in RFP of 150 Preliminary Official Statements at 100 double sided pages per
book and 150 Official Statements at 100 double sided pages per book, including charges for electronic distribution

and perfect bound.



WHEREAS:

The Evaluation Committee recommends the appointment of Wold Financial
Printing for a period of two (2) years with an optional one (1) year extension at the
discretion of the Authority, commencing on the effective date of this Resolution,
unless terminated earlier in the sole discretion of the Authority; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY THAT:

SECTION 1.

The Authority hereby authorizes the engagement of Wold Financial Printing to
serve as the Authority’s Financial Printer for a period of two (2) years with an

~ optional one (1) year extension at the discretion of the Authority, commencing on

SECTION 2.

SECTION 3.

the effective date of this Resolution subject to the terms and conditions set forthin-
this Resolution, the RFP and the Firm’s Response, unless terminated earlier in the
sole discretion of the Authority.

The Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director to take and do any and all
acts and things as may be necessary or desirable in connection with the

engagement of Wold Financial Printing as the Financial Printer of the Authority.

This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.

Mr. Hutchinson moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and read,
which motion was seconded by __ Mr. Edwards __ and upon roll call the following members voted:

AYE:

NAY.:

Roger B. Jacobs

Ridgeley Hutchinson

Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:

Joshua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion cartied and said resolution adopted.

Financiat Printer -3/21/13



EXHIBIT V

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
ACCEPTING AND ADOPTING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR 2012
Adopted: March 21,2013

WHEREAS: The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”)
annually prepares financial statements and this year engaged the
independent auditing firm of Emst & Young, LLP (the “Independent
Auditors™) to perform an audit of the Authority’s financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2012 (the *2012 Financial Statemenis”);
and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have received and
reviewed the 2012 Financial Statements and the unqualified Report of the
Independent Auditors thereon dated March 12, 2013 (the “Independent
Auditors’ Report™); and -

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have met with
representatives of the Independent Auditors and have discussed with
them the 2012 Financial Statements and the Independent Auditors’
Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority have received the 2012 Financial
Statements and the Independent Auditors’ Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have recommended
that the members of the Authority accept the 2012 Financial Statements
and the Independent Auditors’ Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority wish to accept and approve the 2012
Financial Statements and the Independent Auditors’ Report.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Authority hereby accepts and approves the 2012 Financial
Statements and the Independent Auditors’ Report, as attached hereto and
incorporated by reference as if set forth in full herein.

SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-
4(1).




Mr. Edwards moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced
and read, which motion was seconded by ___ Mr. Hutchinson __ and upon roll call the
following members voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Peirecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Joshua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Auditor Resolution -3/21/13



Ernst & Young LLP

“ImlHlm”H””HHHHHlm“m“”FEIERNST&YOUNG ——

iselin, NJ 08830-0471
i

Tel: +1 732 516 4200
WWW.EY.Com

Independent Auditors’ Report on Bond Resolution Compliance

The Members of the |
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States,
the balance sheet of the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority as of December 31, 2012,
and the related statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated March 12, 2013.

Pursuant to the General Revenue Bond Resolution adopted October 10, 1968 and amended
January 12, 1971, the General Higher Educational Facilities Revenue Bond Resolution adopted
October 10, 1968 and amended April 13, 1971, applicable Series Resolutions and applicable
Trust Indentures during the period under audit, the Authority had outstanding the authorized
bonds and obligations listed in Exhibit A of this report as of December 31, 2012.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or
conditions of the Resolutions and Indentures referred to above, insofar as they relate to
accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge
of such non-compliance. In addition, in our opinion, on December 31, 2012, the balance in the
Debt Service Reserve Funds and the Renewal and Replacement Accounts for each outstanding
bond issue where applicable and the insurance coverage maintained meet the requirements of the
aforementioned General Resolutions, applicable Series Resolutions and applicable Trust
Indentures.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Members and management of the .
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority and the Trustees under the Resolutions and
Indentures and is not intended to be, and ‘should not be, used by anyone other than these

specified parties.
é/vmit : 4 MLLP

March 12, 2013

A member fiem of Ernst & Young Globa! Limited



Exhibit A
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations

December 31, 2012

Institution Issue

Caldwell College - 2006 Series ¥

Centenary College —~ 2003 Series A
" — 2006 Series.J

— 2007 Series B
— 2010 Series D -

Drew University — 2003 Series C
— 2007 Series D
- 2008 Series B
- 2008 Series I
— 2010 Series C

Essex County ~ Series 1999 C

Fairleigh Dickinson University — 2002 Series D
‘ — 2004 Series C

— 2006 Series G

— 2006 Series H

Felician College — 2006 Series |

Georgian Court University ~ 1998 Series, Project B
— 2003 Series, Project C
— 2007 Series D
~ 2007 Series H

Hudson County — Series 1999 D
Hudson County Community College ~ Series 1999 G

Institute for Advanced Study ~ 2001 Series A
— 2006 Series B
— 2006 Series C
— 2008 Series C



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

Institufion

December 31, 2012

Issue

Exhibit A

Institute for Defense Analyses

Kean University

Middlesex County

Montclair State University

New Jersey City University

2000 Series D

Series 1998 B
Series 2003 D
Series 2005 B
Series 2007 D

2007 Tax-Exempt Lease

Series 2009 A

2010 Tax-Exempt Lease
2011 Tax-Exempt Lease

" Series 1999 E

Series 2002 F
Series 2003 E
Series 2003 L

‘Series 2006 A

Series 2006 J
Series 2007 A
Series 2008 J

Series 2002 A
Series 2003 B
Series 2007 F
Series 2008 &
Series 2008 F
Series 2010 F
Series 2010 G



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

Institution

December 31, 2012

Issue

Exhibit A

New Jersey Institute of Technology
Passaic County
Passaic County Community College

Princeton Theological Seminary

Princeton University

Ramapo College of New Jersey

~  Series 2001 H — Taxable
~ Series 2010 H
—  Series 20101

— Series 1999 F
—  Series 2010 C

— 2002 Series G
— 2009 Series B
—~ 2010 Series A

— Various Commercial Paper
- 2003 Series D
— 2003 Series E
— 2004 Series D
— 2005 Series A
— 2005 Series B
—~ 2006 Series D
— 2006 SeriesE
— 2007 Series E
— 2007 Series F
— 2008 Series J
- 2008 Series K
— 2010 Series B
— 2011 Series B

— Series 2003 F
— Series 2003 G
~  Series 2003 H
- Series 2004 E
— Series 2006 D
— Series 2006 1



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (coritinued)

December 31, 2012

Instifution

Exhibit A

Ramapo College of New Jersey (continued)
Rider University
Rowan University

(Formerly Glassboro State College)
* (Glassboro State College issue

Saint Peter’s College

Seton Hall University

Series 2011 A
Series 2012 B

2012 Series A

Series 1983 D*
Series 2003 1
Series 2004 C
Series 2005 D
Series 2006 G
Series 2007 B
Series 2008 B
Series 2011 C

2007 Series G
2007 Series 1
2008 Series H

2008 Series D
2008 Series E
2009 Series C
2011 Series' A



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2012

Exhibit A

Institution Issue
Stevens Institute of Technology 1998 Series 1
2007 Series A
The College of New Jersey Series 2008 D
Series 2010 A
Series 2010 B
Series 2012 A
The College of Saint Elizabeth 2008 Series F
The Richard Stockton Series 1988 A
College of New Jersey Series 2005 F
Series 2006 F
Series 2007 G
Series 2008 A

Thomas Edison State College

University of Medicine and Dentistry
of New Jersey

William Paterson University of New Jersey

2007 Tax-Exempt Lease
2010 Tax-Exempt Lease
2011 Tax-Exempt Lease

2011 Series D

Series 2009 B

Series 2004 A
Series 2005 E
Series 2008 C
Series 2012 C
Series 2012 D



Exhibit A
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2012
Institution ' Issue
Treasurer, State of New Jersey -~ Series 1999 A, County College
Capital Project Fund

—  Series 2002 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

— Series 2004 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

—  Series 2005 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

—  Series 2006 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

—  Series 2001 A, Dormitory Safety
Trust Fund

- Series 2001 B, Taxable, Dormitory
Safety Trust Fund

—~  Series 2003 A, Dormitory Safety

' Trust Fund
.- Series 2002 A, Library Grant

Program



it

ntaud

BiLY]
w

I

S

nancia

S

LR

T L o




T afied | SPNS3L HPRE JuSUIRIR]S (RjOUBLY 2102 g1 Duno A g 1513 - |RIJUSPHUOD

&.J\Nx\:& o G

's1noA Ajniy Alep
“JIpNE NG JO SYNSaJ 341 IN0Ge aARY ABW NOA Suolisanb Aup Jamsue pue 1iodal Siy} Jo SJUBIU0D 8] SSNISIP 0] noA Ypm Buiiesu 03 PIRMIOL YHO0| BM

‘saiyed paydads asaul ueyj Jeylo suoiue Ag pasn ‘aq
10U PINOYS PUB '3 0] PSPUSIUL JOU S} 3 "JUBWAhBURI PUR PIEOg 84} *99F)LILIOD JPNY 3U3 JO SN PUR UOIJRULIOLI U] 10} AjB|0S papusiu; i odat siyL

, *A)IOYINY BY] 0] $BDIAIS HPNE Ino Jo Alljend eyl aacidull pue JojjuoLl

AjlENUIIUOD 0] S BUKGRUS Ul 100} [BDI3LD B Si ssa004d DSY 8y "sdupuLIolad Ino uo jndup JnoA aplao.d 0} ss000.d (DSY) AUIEND 8DIAJSS JO JUBLUSSISSY
ut 21edinijsed 0 noA 9HEINOJUS BM PUR 'SUOIIRIBdXS JNOA POBIXS 10 J9BUl {IiM ey Aent 1saubiy 943 JO SBIIAIBS IPNE YUIM NOA aplaold 03 BALIIS

B "O0ALES Em;u sigeyIeWDl 1IBAIBP 0] (206 N0 U0 SNDO0J B UM "HIOM mwm:o_mmmwoﬁ N0 Jo Aenb sy} 81enjeas AjJENU{UOD am *BUNoA B JsUIT 1Y

“ALJOUINY BY] 10 1PNE N0 Wiy Bujynsal
s3ubBIsSy| Jno aJeys 03 Apuniioddo siy3 ajeasdde ap “upne Jno Builonpuod ug [suucsied S, AJIOYINY BU3 Jo 8URISISSE pue Joddns 1iny 8] PaAIBD3 BM

*saanpadold wmac INO 10 snjels aU] $8pnjdu| osie jodsd
siyL "(AIoUINY, B4R AJJOYINY SBIIDRL [BUOIIRINDT ABSIAN MON BUJ JO SJUBWIRIR]S |BIDURUY SUY JO JIPNE INO JO S3iNSaJ ay] juasasd 0} pases|d a2 oM

‘83]11WIWOD RPNY BU JO SIDQUISN J1B3()

Ajoyiny sailijioe jeuoijednpg Assiar MaN By} JO 88JUWILL0D 1PNy SUl

€102 'ST Ydlew

WO A MMM
Q0P 9IS 284 T+l

OLER0 N 'uiBs)

——

..1::_23

e




2 abeg | $HNSa] UPNE JUSWSIRIS felpuRLY ZTOZ o1 BUNOA B ISUIT - JEHUIPHUSD

siIsAjeuy jerueuiq - J xipuaddy <

110dal M3IABI 193d - g Xipuaddy «
SUO[}RJ3pPISU0D aduapuadapul - v xipuaddy <
:sadlpuaddy

SUOIJRIIUNWIWOD padinbal jo buiwi] «

9pILIBA0 JUBWBHRURUI JO ¥SIJ BYJ PUB SUOIJRIDPISUOD PNel -
$9INSOISIP PUE SJUNOJDE JUSWBIR)S |BIdURUl 4«

sjnsaJ ypne 2102«

mmommu.mc:EES paJinbay«

EICEINELE

SJUa]U0d JO 3jgel



¢ abkg | S}MSaI JPNE JRIDWSFRIS [BIIURHY ZT0Z ’ 477 Buncy B 1533 - [RIUap) U

SPJEPUES BUMPNY JUSWLLIBADD UM

35UEPI0IIY U] PaliIoIad SIUSLISIRIS |BIDURLL 8] ;0 JPNY UR U0 paseq siajzen BYI0
pue aaueidwio) uo pue Huylioday jeDURUL JSAQ [01JU0D euIRju| UO Hoday e anss| <.

IpAE INo (6 33100 3Y3 Buknp

apel SUCIIBAI3SAO Uo paseq *Adua|olyfa jo JuBWaAcIdW! 10) sajunoddo pug $10JU00
[euss3ul Buipiebal SUOIIEPUSWILIOTAL N0 SAPIACI JBY) J3133) uewBbeuRl B 8NSSy «-

*JpNE N0 BupINp paunuap] ‘Aue i *SOSSIUMBaM |21I3]RUL 10 SBISUSIDYSD jueoisubis ‘ SUOIJRSIUNWIWOD
PaNss) 8¢ 03 191191 SSSUYRBM |BIIDIRUI ON <« BuIgLIDSAP S91ULIOD BPNY 34} pue JuswabeURUL 6 UOHEIIUNIWIOD UBTILIM B 3NSS] « JoI3U0T JRULDIUL
‘pazeldwon ag 0} maaa: Ayjenb Juswabebuz «
“uswabeued sUolInjosal
WW0J3 SUOKRIUBSaIdRY JO 19318] & LIRII0 < pUOg SNOLIBA S)1 UM 9oueliduiod S,AJ0UINY 8y} U0 uoluldo ue ssaidx3 «
suodg

IHPNR ZTOZ JO SNIBIS <
‘sepdnishiels. oDl o

AjIoyIny 83 SO SIUSWBIR]S |RjDURUY 343 UO UOiuldo e ssB1dX3 <
Vb SOIGRIaN]|ap PUB SBIMSS: 5

se|qeJanljad




¢ abegd | $3IN531 JIPNE JUBWBIRS IRIDURYY 2TOZ

*SJUBLLIANEIS [RIDUBULE POUPNE BUT YLM
1US3SISLOD S} UOJIBWLION] UINS JBUISYM aujwialap o} '9|gesidde se "(Jicdal lenuue
f2) SJUSWAILIS [RIDUBUY Pa}PRE DUIUIRIUOD $IUBWINIOP JBUI0 AUR MBIASI ||IM 3M

sadiulad bujunosoe
pajdaooe Agetauab yPm JualsisuoD a:e sai|od s,AJlouny BUL ‘SJUSWRIE)S
ippoURUY 343 01 2 90N U] PIgLIDsap ate Ajloyiny au} Jo sapiod JuRdUbIS 8UL

2102 'TE 12qwsdag
papus 1Eah sy} 0 SIUBLIBIEIS [RIDUBUY S,A3L0UINY 9Y] uo uonydo palenbun ue
anss) 61 Joadxe Aualing sm *saunpadoid Jpne DUUlRWS) INO JO uoieidwos uodn

‘oA 0] paplacd Usag Ajsnoiaead se jusweslbe
ebuUa JPNE ING Ul PapRiu) a1e saljgisucdsal ang

yons 30 ACOD v *18339] Juawsb
T, LSJUSWILIGD

d71 BUNOA g J5UL3 - [etauapue)

*UOISIAB) BInbas yiDg ‘10 ‘Ji0dal s Jojpne

N0 'SIUSWISIRIS [RIDURLY D) J2UIOUM BUILLISIBP aM ‘SISINA ASUD)SISUOI
[BJR]EL B JRYy] SPNOUOD 3M [} SIUBLUSIRIS [RIDUBLY PBYIPNE SU3F UJM JUBISISUOIU]
Ajjeialeus §1 ‘uopeiussaad §3 0 JSUURLL SU3 JO 'UOIIBUIOUL YINS IBHISUM
J3PISUOI PUR UOHBULIOU] J3UI0 UINS MIIAD) &M ‘SJUBWIalR]S jeioueul) buljipne
HUIUIRIUOD SIUSLINDIOP U] UOJIBWLIOL J8Y)0 SSPNjaul AjIouIny aul I "sjususiels
[BIDURLLE PANPNE 243 Seluedwodde Jeyl Juawabeuew Ag paiedaid uoIiBWIO)LY
Jayo lop Aljgisuodsad §,Jo3pne 8yl sausHgrIss 055 U0I08s NY VdllY

SIUBLWBIRIS [BIoUBLY payipne BujulRIUGD SIUBWINDOPR Ul UCIIRWIOU] J8Yl0
$19718W Pa3RIaJ JBUI0 PUB SBINSOISID JUBLUSIEIS [BPUBLE] «

$93BWIISO BUENCIoe JUEdIUBIS <

seaJe BuIbISWa 10 12]SI8A0HU03 Ui $331jod HUPUNOIDE JURSLUDIS JO 105 BUL «

Aonod Bunjunoaae ue ‘u) abueys e Jo ‘fo uendope sy} Huipnpur ‘Ajloyiny aul
1O S9ouRISWNIAD Jejnoilied ayl o sa1d1jod BUUNoIJE O ssaudjendoidde syl «

3pnioUl ABLLE SUOISSNISIP 858y, "Algeidanie

Buipnous ‘seaoeld BUIUNoITE JUEDHIGIS S AHIUD BU] JO spoadse aalzeyenb Jnoqe

25URLISA0D UIM DabliRyd 25047 UM SUOISSNOSIP BAIIONIISU0D pue uado BABY B

sao3oesd Bupunoosoe
ueapubis s,AjJ0uINY ay) jo s1oadse aAjIR}i|end 83Ul JNOGR SMIIA INO

*uoluido yons ou $saJdxd jim am ‘Abupioddy

*Biyja0082 |BIDURLYY JIA0 [01JUOD [BUIBIUY S,ATIOUINY BU) O SSBUBAIIIRLD

8y} uo uojuido ue buissaidxs jo asodind 843 10} JOU ING 'SPOURISWNIID BYF Ul
aeldoadde aue Jeys saanpado.d ppne buiubisap Jo) siseq e se buppiodsl [BloURUL
JBA0 [0JIU0D JBUISILL JO UOIIRIBPISUDD SSPN[IU) SJUSUIBIR]S (BIDURUY JO PRE UY
“JUBLISIRISSIW jB1Ia3RW JO DO1] 248 SJUBWR]R]S

[B|2URLY BU3 JBUIBUM INCAER BIUBINSSE SINJOSYR UBY] JBUIR] 'Bjeusseal ujelqo o3
'SJURIUNOISY SHANd PAIIIIED JO 8INUISUL URDIISWY aU} AG PaYS|IgRISS SB "$alels
pajun 8yl u] paidanoe Ajjessuab spiepuels BUIpNE Ylim SOURPIOIJE U} paubisap
sem Jpne Jnp “juawabeuew 30 ANNGisUOdsSaE aY] ale sjuUBWaIRIS [BIDURLY BYL
spJepuels bupyipne pajdense Ajjessuab Jopun saijiqisuodssal 5,J03pNY
: : S BRMY s

SUOIe21IUNWWOI palinbay




G abed | S3INS8L JIPNE JUBWSIEYS JRjouRUY ZT0T 47 BUno A %8 15U43 - [RijUapL0D

*SNISUSSUOY 10 a3uepinb aaypejoyine

10 %22] B S 22U} uaym Alienajpied '(AJjsnpul Ue 0} anbiun asoy] 10) Sear

Buibiaws 10 |BISIaA0U0D U sa1djjod Buijunodde Juedjjiubis Jo 5108342 EL=HETYT)

UM DOBIRYD B50U] Yl SSNISIP ABw am 'sadi1oe.d buijunodde Juedijubis

5, A104INY 8Ul 1o $303d5e SARIEND B} JNCOR UCISSNDSIP JRG JO 1ed sy

‘aoueping SESIE Huibaawe 10 |BISIFA0IIUCD U] S82]jod Buijunodde Jueapubls jo 1aya Byl -

DA[IBHIOUIAR 4O ¥OR] B S| 243U3 UDJUM 10} Seale BulbISWS Jo [BISIBA0LUCD :s90130esd Buiunoooe
uy AjJoyIny sul Ag pasn sa)3jjod BUlR0IO8 JURDYIUBIS OL S18M 3JAUL juesubls s,AJJOUINY 8y) o s30adse aAljellenb U3 INOgE SMAlA IND

S3|HIUS Jejuus Ag pasn sajoied BulUN0IOE Uo UOTIBULIOJUI SE |jaM SB

sajolod JuedyIubIS JO 350U aUl AQ PRlIdyR e JBY) SWaY JUIUIBIRIS [BISUBYY
10 UOIIELILBD) 3] ISIXa $adnod BUIUNOIDE SAIRUISYE J|GRIAID0R BIBYUM «

‘ AU 343 JO SROUBISWINDIR
1einoned sy 0 saislod Huunodoe sU3 Jo ssausieudosdde 8yl «

(sjuaweunouctd bujunoase
mau paloadxs 103 AjTua 8y3 J0 sbuuIes SIn3ny pue JUALIND uo Adjjod
Bupunoosde W sbueyd e Suipdope o poylaL pue ULl B4} 40 10943 SUL «
supweaunoucd BUUNGCIIE MaU jo uoljeddde au3 Dupnpul
*sappod bununosde JUBdYUD(S ‘Ul SBDUBYD J0 ‘MBU JO UOIISIES [BRIUI YL «
Bupmoyo: syl apnioul AR Uajym saiod BUjunoade ut abueyo
B 10 'O UONdOPE 3y} JNOGE SMALA INO SSNISIP 8M ‘s30i30e.d Dupunodde uesyjubis
s, A1LI0UINY BU3 O $199dsk BAIIEYEND BY) JNOQE LOISSNOS|P INo jo Jied sy
Aajjod Bugunoooe ue ‘uj abueyd e Jo ‘jo uojjdope By} *Buipnioy] Ajdoyiny ayl
10 seaUBRISWNOYD Jejnoled ayj 0] sapilod buijunoaoe Jo ssauajpldoidde 3yl «

saoppoead Bupuncooe
JuesIubS S,ANOUINY Y3 J0 5300458 aaljeenb 3y} Jnoge SMBIA INO

*J8aA siyy AJIouIny 343 Ag pajdope spiepURls meu OU alom 9Jay]
i L BIMBUWILIOD e ; L

SUOI1EdIUNWIWOoI paldinbay




g sbed | Synsal JpNe JUSILISIE}S |RIOURY ZT02 ' 4773 Bunoj % IS13 - {eRUSplYU0D

‘ulzouod Bulob e S8 BnUIUoD

03 AJINGE $,A3U3 343 INOGR 1GNOP BIIIBISANS S 819U) 9ABIISY 03 SN Pes)

12U SIUBAB 10 SUOIIIPUOS AUJ JO 5108445 8513ADR B3 Yim buljeap Joj sueid
$,JuaWabeuRL JNOGR UOJ3RWIOjU! 3plaoad 03 $saubulmun s,juswabeuey «

wswabeurww AQ SN U Pasodull SUOIIDLISAY <

UOI1RULIOM DB)2adXD JO AN[IGRHRARUN B, <

jipne ay) 93ajdwod o} UDIM LY Bl Ja1G AJUESS3IBUUN UY <
uojieluojul paiinbai buipiaotd Juswabeuew Ul sABlap JUBHUBS <

1Se SI911BU YINs apn|aul ABLL YDIym
1PNE 3] (O aaurLLLciIad BY) 03 pRlelal Juswabauew Ylim Bugeep Ul pRI@UNOOUL
£33N D UENRHUBIS AUE JO 33UBUIBA0H UJiM pabieyd B50U3 ULICjUl BfA

ipne ay3 bupwsoyied
SUOU BIBM B13YL USLM JuUBWABEUELI UM BUIfeap Ul P2Jajunoous SaINDRP UEdIUDIS

SJUSWRILIS [BAURLY DU3 U] AJUIR1IBOUN UD|JRUIISY {0 BUNS0[ISIT «

se|q uswabeuew ajgissod JO SI0JRIIPUL «

. 1Ua1LDIRISSILL 121IDIBWE 1O SHSIY «

sa1eU)se Bulunodde Bujewl 10} 558204 s, Juswabeueiy «

$31EWIISS BUIJUNCIOE 10 UOIIEILITUSD] § jusliadeuei «

:BUIOJI0) 243 2pn|aur ABW YXum sazewliss buijunosde

S, AJJOUINY B4) INOGE SMBEA NG SSNDSID SM *$a91300.d BLIUNO ISR JURDHIUDIS

*s1eaA JOHId UYM JUBISISUCD SBM SIIBUHISS ‘ : e

ssays bulemnaies ug pasn Abojepoylaw syl "ssiFinael pajeal noJAed pue S}ausg SiAaoyany au3 40 539305 3AREYIRNAD 3L JNOGE LOISSNISIP NO 30 hed sy

JuswAcIdWR)s0d JAUI0 JO LOHBINJIED Ul BUIOjaARD SE [IaM SB SYRAIRIR sajew3se BulLUNOIIR JUEIPIUBIS «

SIqIIAL00UN 10} SaAIISAL J0] AJiSSaISU By} BUIIENIRAS UBUM SIUSLUBIE)S :s5130ad DuuneddR

jerupUy ay3 bunedasd u) suoldwinsse pue ssjewWilse el uswsbeueiy jueayiubis $,A304InY aus jo spoadse aaljeenb ay) Jnoge sMaiA Jng
SR T SIMSUIMOTDY T e . i : - L :

SUOI1e2IUNWIWOI palinbay




£ 8B | Snshs UPNE JUBWISIRYS felouBLY 2TOR

47171 Buno A g 3510 - jRIuapyuod

: *juawsbeURW WO
fupsanbal a1e am UCHRIUSSAIdB] souUBLIBACD Ylim pabIBYD B50U] UM SSTIOSIR BM

.#auEmwmamE Wi} uoneiuasaadal Jo 12138] pUEPURIS BU] UIRIQO M B : Juswsbeuss W0l wcmmm:wmu a)e am suojiejuasasday

'DOA|0SSS 1R} DJE 1Bi] LOJRULIoU|
Adeupupaad 10 $3085 9190WI0U YO PASEQ UOIUIGO JO SBIUSISLIP SpNISU| 10U Op

SUSWR2.BESIP “UnISSNasIP SIU3 Jo sasedand 104 Jodal §,J0JPNE N0 JO SJUBWSILIS

elouBUl $,A31I0UINY B4 03 JURSIUDES 3G pIN0D 21pbaibbe syl Ul 1o AEnplaipul

1BY] SJ21IBW JROGR 'PAAj0SA AII0IDRISIFRS JOU 10 J3yIRUm 'juswabeuenl

ypm sjuswasibesip Aue aourusanch ylim pabieyd SSOY} Ylm SSNISIP M

*BUOL 2i3M BlBYL juawabeuewl yym sjuawoasibesig
"SIUSLII]RIS |RIDURUY 2Y3 jo uopeledald-

ay1 Ul seiq Jenoged e a3edipul ARW JBU) $IUSWB]RISSIW [BEIS1RWILY Builinosy

AjJuUBnbai) SE YONS 'SJUBWISIEISSIUL [B1ID1R WU PRIOB.I0D 1840 B5UBLLIBACE

ym abaeyD asoyl Uim SSnasip AeLL M "UoIppe U} 'saUnpanoad Jpne Ino

50 JRSal B SB JUSiabeuRW JO UCNIUSTIR Y] 0} JYBNoJg slam Jey] sjusselssiL

-s31npan0ad YoNs J0 Jinsal B S2 JuaWsbeuew P2158.10) '1RLIPIEW 2URLIBA0D Ylm pabieyd aSoUT UM SSNISID SM
50 UOPUBTIR 843 0 JYHN0IG SJUSLLIDIRISSIM PI1DB.II0T jRLISTRW OU BJaM 313YL SIUBWISILISSIW PRJ0aLIDd [BDIEN

*SJUBUIBIEISSIW
T SIUBMIWIOD

PAPIOIBIUN OU BJ9M 313y

*SIUBLIDIRIS [RIDUBUY) BININJ OF uCliR|al

U suopeopdul 3jq1ssod syl bulpniouy fsuorjeISPISUCD DAJBRIUEND SE [|9M SB
SAIJEENE BULIBDISUOD ‘AUE J] 'SITUBUISIRISSIL AjDYH PUR UMOUY 108,100 0} ain)ie)
P 30 suoneddun 3U3 aoueussach Yiim pableud asoyl Yyiim SSNISID aM ‘UoRIppe Ul
*310UM B SB SIUDUIDIR]S [B1DUBU)] BU] PUB 'SIINSO[ISIP JO SBOUR|EQ JUNOIIR
‘SUDIIDBSUR] JO SBSSRD JUBAB|DE U] UG spowad 101id 03 Pajeel SJUSWBIRISS{L
pa17a.1IoouUn 10 1Iajje 243 adxueuaA0h ylim pabieyd asoy3 Y3lm sSNIsIp

osje ap 1odal §,Jo1pne s43 Ui Uoluido Mo Uo SRy Aetl Aay3 IRyl PeiB oyl
pUB $)USLLBIRISSI DBJORLIOIUN B0URUIBACH Ytm PBBIEYD BSOL3 UM SSNISID 3M

SIUSWSIRISSIW papledalun

SUOI}IBDIUNWWOD palinbay




g abed | SHnSal JPNR JUSWDILS jepdURUY 2T0T 471 BUno A B ISUIT - [RlIUSPYUD

. *SJa3Iew Yons
INOGE WSL) UM SUOIIEDIURLILIOD SO JUBXa pue alnjeu syl bupiebas aoueusaA0h

yism pabaeyd asoyd yim DuipuRisIapun Jno uo paseq ‘'saaho]dula 1BAR; JaMo|

Aqg pejesjadiad suonendolddesius Aue SSnOSD M 'UOIIIPPE U] ‘$IUSUIBIE]S [RIDUBUY

U] JO JURWAIRISSIW [BIISIBW B 9$NeD jeyl (seaio|dua Jauyjo 10 Jusabedel

101U3S AQ pasned JaylsUm) s1oe jebayil pue pnedj bue jusluabeuew Jojuas BUlAOAU)

-pREJ} 0} BNP JUSUDIRISSIW [RLIBIRWI JO XS 5198 [RBalt puR prelgy 35URUIRA0E UM pabIrYD 330U] UM S3BDIUNUILIOS 3M

243 07 pajeiRd S8UNPAD04d INO JNOGE UOIBLLICU] 910U IG} UOIIISS LSUOIIRIODISUOD SjUBLDIR)S 1RIDURUL} B4} JO JUBISIR]SSIW |RpIajell B SSNED J8U3
predd,, SUl 03 Jojay "UOIBI[UNUILIOD alnbas jey) s1aljew AUE 10 BJEME JOU DIB DM s1oe jeballl pue pnely pue juswabeurw Jojuss BuiAjoALg s1oe jeha)l} pue pnRld

pasiedul] Uaaq Jou sey Iduspuadapul 312U uoISNOUOD 3y) Buyoeal

U] 03 UoIIRIANISU0D JuEaHILDIS 2ARD am Jeu) pue aauapuadapul uo Jeag o} Jybnoul

aq Ajgeuoseal Aew JuswlBpn] |pUOISSRI01G N0 U] JRYI (papnoud ag o3 pajoadxs Jo-

papiAnld S80jAI8S JIPRE-UoU Jo ‘sdiysuoiie|as Ajjule) JO SS3UISNg 'g1saa3u IBuLRUY

‘paiiedill Usag joU Sey auspuadapul 1Y3 UDISIOU0D 3} Buioeal u *53) SEIUSUOHRIAS JO SSIURISWINDIID 8oURUISA0D Ylim pablieyd 35043 ulim SSNISD

07 UOlRIBPISUCD JUENLUDBIS 3ARD oM JRYT JO aouspuadapul Ino uo Jeaq o] Jbnou; am 'SUOIIENYIS WIELIS3 U) *9ouspuadapu) Jno sulljye Jodss 5,J03pne ayl ybnouity
3q Algeuosea. Aew ‘juswbpnl jeuossajold Ino ut 'jey] siajjew oU ale 33yL S19}10 asuapusdapul j0 UOHRIUNUILIGD

splepuels bupipne pue sejdjaund BuUN0IIR JO uonentidde ayy buipiedes
SUCISSNISIP AUR ‘SJ33jeW 12130 Buowe ‘BLIPNIOU] 'IOYPNE BY] SB UOHUSIR
BULLINDB 1O JRIJIUE N0 UM UOHIDLUOD U SIUBPUCHSII0D 0 SUOISSNISI] <

SIUBWISIEISSIW (RIISIRUL JO SHSLL B4} pPaye Avw jey)
soibeIRl3s pue sueid ssaulsng pue ‘AnIua 9] bunaalle SUOipUOD SSBUISRY -

:BuIpniaUE JuawebEUBW YIM 'PIUBpUOdsaLI0d O 12alghs 2yl 40 "H)IM PasSSNOsEp
213M 1B} S13732W Jueatiubls Aue 35U2U19A00 UM pabieyd a50U] UM SSNOSID M

juswsbeusw UM souapuodsatiod 'Jo 1a3[gns

AUON 2y} J0 'posSnoSIP SiaM JBy] pne 5U3 wouj buisie "Aue Ji 'sanss] jueatubig
*UOIIRHNSUOD

LINS 10 103{aNs Y] BJaM JBY] SJJIRW JUBIUDIS INOQE SMalA IO Soukusarob
yyim pableyd 250y] UM SSNIsp M 'siepew Bujunodoe o Bugipne Jnoge
SIURIUNOIIL JBUJ0 UM PIHASUOD SBY JuaiobeUBWL JBU] AIBME 218 3M UBUM

'3IBME 212 BM YIIUM JO BUON SJUBIUNODIE 12430 UM UoIIBYNSLOD S Jusiabeuepy

T ASTUSWIMIOD




6 sbed | syinsad jipne JUBLIBYR}E JRIURUY 2TOT

*gga00Sd Augyrodas [BDUBLY 3Y] 1O JUDISIBAO 2UY
Burpiebal axueuIaA0b UM pahieyd Bsoy) O] JURAS[R) pUR ueopiubis “quawbpni
1IN0 Uy 'ale Jeul upne ay) wol) Huisiie senss) 1o sBUipU JBylo oL BB BiRYL

*1apia0id aojases Alsed-pay e EdSmEEou 30 PRIIBALOIGNS 249M SBIIAIBS ON

*PSI0U 2IBM SISSIUNBAM [2]ISTBW ON'

JF1 BUNOA 3§ 15UI3 - [B13UaPIUGD

-ssan0.d Buglodas 12puRUl U3 10 JBISIaA0 Jay} butpiebal asuguIaAch
Uirm pabaeyd 8s0U3 03 JUBASI pUR juesiiubls ‘Juaubpnf jeucissajold 1o Ui
‘2@ 18Y] 21PNE 3] WoJj BUIsLIE ‘AU JI *SBNSS| JO SDUIPUL JBYI0 9IEDIUNWWICD BM .

. s5820.4d
buigaodad |eauBuy 943 Jo Jubisianc oyl suipsebaa sanss] 1o sbujpuy 9410

-5IaJUSY B01AISS PaIeyS BuncA B 1SU3 18 Bupiom jpuuostad

SN UOU "JUBLIPUOI3S UBIBI0 @ U0 SN 3Y3 Ut bupjiom Ppuuosad sn uou ‘(wopdupy
pajun buno g 1sulg *B'e) SuLll S3BIILLE BUNOA R JSWIT 10 Hi0M QUM jauuos.ad
& uou :sajdusexa Buimoyc) sU3 ‘01 PAJRUN 84 JOU INg ‘apnioLl ubiw s18pla0ad
aoiadas Aped-paiyl "AIDUIPLODDY Wi SN N0 Ag paiojdwa Jou st OUm [ENPIAIPUE
Ue apnjoul 0} Japiacid 8aia1as Aped-pliyl, pauyep Apeolg sey ajiny syl

*IUBYD B G} SIDIAISS jBUCISS@j0.d Buipaosd uf sopiacad aalales Ajied-piyl e asn
SM JaASLIBUM SIUSID LLIOJU) SM JBY) SBHNbal *AYAjoaIqo pue Ajubajuy ‘z0T 8y
Japun ZTT "oN BUNY SOIUYI3 VdDIY "S3djAJes [euoissajo.d Buiplaoid ur ajedioied
AU BUNOA % 1SUIT 0} S$IBYHNSUOD PUB 'SI015R4JU0D uspuadaput ‘sepiaosd
25198 Ajied-pJiy] "SAoURISWINDLD Bu} uodn Hupusdsp pue awil 0] Swil wodd

siapiacd aojases Ajled-palyl buipiebad bulind sJ1y3e VdIlY

“UPNE N0 JO 9$IN0D B4 HULIND PBIIIUSH] BIBM 12U |01JU0D
[BLIBIUI Ul SSSSOUNERM JR1IIIRW PUR SSIOURIDNSP JUBDIJUDIS (1B 31RDIUNUILIOD S

J0JJU0D [BLLISIU U] SISSIUNESM [BLIBJRU PUR S3[DUBIDLAP JURdHIUBIS

SUOI1edIUNWIWOD paJinbay



07 abed | suNSel PpNE JUWBILIS RdURUY ZTOZ : d77 BUNOA % 15U - [BI3USPIIULD

“PBIOU SUOIIRIXS
ON "SIOURJEQ JOSSE 19U JO UOIIRIIHISSRID BY] PRlEN|RAS PUR SI95SE j8i 0) sabueyo palsa) am <«
‘uoigeneA [elienIIe eyl bujeiduscd Ui Alenjde Juspusdapul g, Ajlouiny .
3y Ag pazyn suondwnsse ay3 paienjeas pue Uoilebiqo syl 81ein3|ed 0] PIsSn B1ep SNSuad sunisuad UBY3 JRYI0 STysUaq Juawhiodualsod o suolebigo
aU1 J0 Huilsay patuloiad am ‘sl Joud 2yl Ul paLNDE] J0U SBM UOHEN|ZA [RLIENI0E MU Y <

$35552 15N

-pa1oU sUoTIdaIXe ON "SINIGR) PaNIIOR pue saiqeArd SJUNOIIE JO SISAIBUE SU] POISS] IM <4 SaiHligeN pantae pue sajgeded sjunoady

‘uopebiy buipuad
10 HUIpURISING HUIpIEHa 135UN0D S,AJIOUINY SUT WL VOB USTILIM DBUIRIGO 3/, 4

sapouabuijuod s50} pue uoyebi

"pa10U 21aM SUONdaIXa ON **PaIRINDIEISI OS[E Sem asuadxa . . sjasse jende?
UOIRI8108E "SI0.I3 UOIEILISSE]D 10} PAIS3] PUE $105Se [BY|deD O3 SUOINPPE PIUINCA SM < 1=

-paiou 9lam suondadxs o "0l|0}1:0d Y3 J0 uoyen|eA
5U3 PO1Se] PUB SIUBLUISIAUL PUR USED PBULIILIOD A O SSYD J8pun 4SI1 JUaUIsaAu pue
$1UaLIISIAU] 'YSED 0} paleal Duiiodas pue BULIUNOISR SUY 4O UOKIEN|BAS UE PALLIOLID BM <

SILBLUISSALL DUR | SBD

N s UsWSs.INgsIp 1oa{old pue sesuadxa bujjeladp

ON ‘SJUBWBSINGSIP Buljelado/sIUaWBsINGSIP 399{0ld 18A0 S|0JJUOD [BUISIUL U] P31S3] OM <

‘ ‘pajou suoldasxe
ON ‘BNUBABI SB PaZIUBOIDL $83) BAIJRIISIUILIPE 'SISE] 1S3) B U0 'PaIeINd|eIl OS[E 9
“3l0IU| JUBLIISIAUI PAUINOA SE [|3M SB $3A3381 USED IBAC S|O4IUOD [BUISTUL BY] PaIS3) aM <

S3UNSO|ISIP PUB SIUNOIDE JUSWSIL]S [RIDURU 4

sjinsea.t ypne 2102




1T abed { $3NSal HPNE JUSWSIRIS IRIDUBLY ZTOZ JT1 BUNOA B JSUIT - {RIIURPHUOD

(£00Z 'BUYSHUnG UIISoM-4IN0S UOSWOL L) IIBIQLY 3A9IS " A "UoHeUiWeXT preLy
11661 ‘02 Buusyand veimsam

4D *wdD 'slaM "L ydesor Agq 'asngy pue pe. [BUo[etnIs0 dolaeyaq |EDI]S pUe
S@2130eJd SSaUISNQ U0 SM3IA $31 UO SaaAojdwa 0] UOIJEIIUNWIWOD Juslusbeuel -

commN;mco;Q\mvnuEm pnelj 1o} suoliedof ajdinw butiojiuowt 104 ssa30ld -
e D pneJj Jo YSid 2y} ajebijiw 03 sjoJjuod pue swelbold -
pRelj [0 SYSLI 3Y] Jo Judwssasse s, Juswabeuepy -

:99]JHLUIOD HPNE 8y} JO SaIjiaisuodsad JYBISIoA0 pue 3|0y <«
_ aJd $8955970.d JUBLUSSOSSE WS S, AU - .
%a ApARDR 10 JYDISIOAC Jipne jeuiajul jo Asenbapy -
@ suoliebajje JoMojg-9[ISIiuMm Yim Dulieap 1o} ss8200d -
89}WWO0 Nipne Ag JybIsIaA0 Juapuadapul pue sAlpdsld -
$21U13/1ONPUOD-JO BP0 -
isHupyy Jaylo Huolue 'ISpISUCD Sp

*5)S1J 8504} 0} puodsal 0] uaye) sey justusbeuew suoljoe sy}
Japisuod pue ajbuell] pneaj a43 Buish 3pLilaA0 JusuabeuURW JO S| BY) BJBNIBAS B <«

*(SUOI}OBSUR) JENSNUN JURDIHIUDIS JO BjeUO}jRI SSBUISN]

ay3 buijen|eas pue sajew)ss buijunodde HuMaIASY ‘SaLIUS jeunof bujuiwexs buipnjoul) SpLLIBAD juswabeuew

10 ¥S14 9y} ssappe 03 salnpasord Asojepuew bujuilojiad pue sysu pnelj 0} asuodsal pue jo uoijediiizuapl ayl
a1e)1j198) 0} UoiRULION BulIaYJed 'BUlIIOISUIRL] 166 SVS 4O SJUBWAlINbal 8y} ssedwodus jim sainpasoldd jipne ing

"(QIpNY JUSW1L}S [BIDUBULS B U] pneld JO UOIJRISPISUOD
166 "ON SYS) PNEL) AQ JO 10112 AQ Pasned J3Yaym ‘Jusuiajeissiul [e1iajeul Jo 91} aie sjuswajels |eloueul
" 3U3 JOUISYM INOGE IDURINSSE 3jGEUOSEDI UIR}q0 03 JIPne ay3 bulwioysad pue bujuueld Joj ajqisuodsal 31e o

ap1lIan0 Juawiabeuew JO ¥SI4 9y} PUR SUOIIRISPISUOD phel




21 abeg | $3nsal Jipne Juswaiels |RlPURL)} ZTOZ 471 BUNOA F ISUIT - jRijudpluUDD
X ssan0.d Buriodal ferauru ay Jo Jubis1aAo sy buiplebal sensst 1o shupul JaYI0
X siepirotd a1a1as Ajed-pary] Buipaebaa Hulnd sHUR YddIv

¥ [0.JJUOD [BUIBIUL Ul SS5SDUNEIM [B1I51RW PUB SBIDUSIDYSP Juedyiubls

SJUBLLDIRIS |2IPURUL BUF JO JURLIDIRISSIW
X {e1IB1EW: € 35neS JBY) S108 JB63jl pue pneJ) pue Juslwabeuew Jouss BUIAJOAU] 5308 |eDajil pue pnely

X . $1011EW S3UBRUSAIPU) JO UOIIRIURWLILIOD

JuswabeuRw
X UIM ‘22UBpUodsaL107 0 1091gNS 3Y3 JO 'PASSNOSIP 213M JBY3 J{PNe U} wod) Buisiie "Aue J} ‘sanssi JuedyiubIS

X SIURILNOIIE JaYJ0 LM SUCIIBYNSUOS S, Juswsheue)y -
X - Juawabeuswl woly buisanbal aie am mcozm#cmmmhawm
X Justusbeuew Yim sjuswaaibes|g
X . mEmE.EEmmmE Pa10a.1I6T [RIIDIBI
X - . . - . mucmﬁﬁwwwg& pSPJIODAIUN
| | X o . mlu:m aul mcﬁEBHm uaYM Ewswmmams Y1Im Buyeap ul um.,&c:oucm mm_mwuwc_u Emuuﬁm_m.
¥ $197]BW POIRISH PUR SDINSOISIP JUSWSIRIS [eDURM «

X sajewilsa buriunooaoe Juesyiubis «

a

X . seate BuibIswWa 10 121548A013U00 U s321jod Buljuncdde Juedyjubis jo 1088 syl

Anyod Bununeooe ug ‘Ul sbueys e 1o 'jo uogdope a3
‘Buipnaul Aueduicd 2y Jo $8oURISWINDILD Jejnoilied mcw 03 satapod butjunoooe jo mmw:mumcaoaam AL «

Bupnou ‘saa13orad BUIUNODIR JUEDIUDIS 5 >Eoﬁn< 313 jo soadse aajjelienb ay) INOGR SMBIA .ﬁo
CX . SIUSLLIDIR)S [BIDURLY PAlIBNE BUIUIRIUOD STUSWINIOP U ¢omm§8£ JBYID

.4 : Sujuly pue adods pauueld Jo MBIAIBAD

‘ . B ‘ Buinss) ale am
) X uojudo 1o adA} ay) Jo uoissnasip Buipndul ‘spiepuels BUIpnE pajdadse AjeJaush 1apun AJIGISUOAsSa1 INO
mﬂcc‘m‘wym.ﬁm—mwm ,‘_w‘mmmn.. I ,m.‘_.nuuo .ucm.zw‘,,.., ER e e I T e ; B R B L

[Wif} B U0 33RDIUNLUWIGD | - UBYM 218DUNWIOD

SUOIJEIIUNWIWOD palinbal jo bujwi



2012 financial statement audit results | Page 13

Confidential - Ernst & Young LLP



p1 obed | SJNS0a HPHE JUAWDIRIS [RISURUY 2TOZ 471 BUNo A 8 15UT ~ [BIILBPIUCD

-Juspuadapu) buiag JoU SB UOIJRWI0JU} JUBABIRL |[B 40 3hpajmouy Bulrey Axted paiyl pataoul pue aigeuoseal
e Ag paAlea1ad 3¢ pInoM 10 Juspuadapuy Jou s JOJPNE UB 18Y] %SH BY3 9INP8I 0] 5B 05 anuspuadapul 0] $1B81Y) BY) $SaUppe spiendajes yons

sjuaws.nbas Atojembal pue Jeuoissajold Jusuisiduli 0] saanpanosd pue sajood buipnioul ‘way Jpne syl Ag pajuawadwy spaenbales <
" jua|2 upne ay) Ag pajusweldwy splenbajes «

. uolje|nbal 10 UoR|SIBa] ‘UoIssei0.4d 8YF AG PRSI spJenbajes «

:s91100818D PROIY 984Y] 0ul SIUBPUADSPU] 0] SJRBIY] 3jRUIUIlS JO ajebiyu Aew jey) sprenbajes saz)1oba1ed vdOIV 2yl

juawabeuety Jo ajol 8y vl Hujuooun) J0)pNE UE SB Yons ‘vonedioiiied juswsabeueiy «

JUSIID JIPNE 3U} Ul S1$.8]U] [BouRUl) BUIARY JONPNE UR SB UDNS "jSBIRIUI-J[98 [BlaURUL] «

10TIPNE BU] J5A0 SDUBNJU BAISSIINS BuIsbI8Xa 10 BUIDI20D SB YoNs ‘SdusnjuL anpun «

sdiysuoperal JuswAoiduie wesd Huipnpul ‘sdiysuoijeral aendolddeus se yans ‘Ajuetiuied «

Emm,_u JIpNE 84 pUB JO}PNE 8y} Usamiaq uolisoddo uj ade Jey] sisalajul Jo suoipde se Uons '1$al9Ul ASIBADY «
uoryisod Jo sjsedsjul s,jusyo Jpne ue buijowo.d JOjIpNE ue S YdNns FADBI0ADY -

YIOM UMO 18Y/51y BUIjIpNE JOJPNE UB SE YINS ‘MBIABI-JISS «

aoueipadde 10 128} Ul JaUylByM ‘eouspuadapul slojpne
ue 0] ]88y} J0 S3L100318D peo.q UaAS BUIMO|i0) By} L0 PBPUNOD) 348 sBuynu pue suoljeiaidiaiul ‘se|nl axuapuadapul JoUpne S,v¥dJIY 3yl

adeaspue| @ouapuadapuj ayL




gT abed | s3msas Jpne JUSWAIRES [RIDUBUY 2T0Z

sdiysuoiieial ssauishqg pue
S971A49S JO 8d0as UO PasNd0) Wea | asuei|dwod aauspuadapu] [Bgolo -«

aouspuadapul jeuosJtad buipiehas sjeuoissejold
19430 pue sJaujed Jo sypne aoueidwod Bulohuo BuIdNPUS)

swesboad pajeal Alsnpul
pue HUIUIES| 210D JDYI0 AUBUL U] PBPNIIUL SI JUBIU0D souspuadapul -

. Apeqojb
S[euoISSaj0.4d He 10} BujuiRl} SoUSpUSERPU] SNONUIUO0D LAIOIEPUBI «

soueqidwos pue bujuiesl asuspusdapu]

Aljenuue asue)jdwiod 18yl ULILod 03 paJnbad

ale [auuosiad 1o YdIYM YHm pue souspusdaput pue Ajalpefgo
Ino Busuteulew jo axueyodwy syl SIYHIIBIY 3BUT IONPUC) JOBPOD Y «
aokid BUO Ul ||e S3INI YIM fenuew anuspuadepul sAsUSYRIdWOD Y +

_ 8Aj1D111594 Blow

ale saint souspliadepu) [BDO) SSBIUN ‘S8 J3S PUB (DY 4D SJUBJUNODDY
10 UOITEIDPS 4 JRUOJIRUISIU} U0 Paseq $312110d 8duspuadopul |BGOID AT «
satdfjod aduspuadapuy

dT7 BuneA B 15413 - 1Bj3UspRU0)

SUOISN|OUOD PBIUBLINIOP PUR 5355320.4d UOIJRYNSUOD -

Bupoyuowl Bujobuo pue soueidadde JUSID UM LCHISUUOD
u] 8sUapuadapul s}en|eAs 0} sainpadold pue suiesboad pajieIsq -

| sJapjoyaleys [RIURISGNS PUR ‘S101034P "SISO Jidu)
pue sjuslp> JPNE N0 puB A3 USSM]B] SAiySUOIIR|a] S58UISNg DULIOJIUOW -

. sjeuojssajosd 1no Ag

pauLIuod Alleaporsad ade Yolum 'sdiysuoijelsl uswAcidws Ajue) pue

sdyysuonesl bupus; "sHUIP|OY JUBUIISBAU] SB UDNS SI91]ew O] punejal
sjuallalinbal ssuspuadapul S, N0 YUM aouendwod Jo DULIOYUOW -

SuiglsAs pue Sa553504d ddUBpUSILapU}

RO - JBYD 8DIA SEDLBULY
DUE (NMED) JusWabeue S|y pue Ajjeny - Jaulied buibeuey [2qoo
0} Jodal suoliouny auspuadapu) pazieijusd - AJIGEIUN0DIR 183D -

yJomiau |eqolh ayy Jloddns sisieroads aouspusdapy) «

aeiado
BM 913ym A1JUNOD AlBAS Ul SIBpES] 8DUDPUSdapU] JO YIOMIBU [BGOID -

uopeziuebip mucaw:wnmw:_

‘sasuanhasuod sey asueyduwiod

-uoU 1eY) pue *|e1uassa | sao|od asuspuadapul aNo UM aoue;dwod Jeyy sidoad no jje 0] BDI0JUIRS Ajjenunuod ap sjeuoissajold Ino Jo bumes
aduspuadapul SNONUUOD Ybnoay) SWaIsAs pue sass900.4d ‘sainjod INO S2I04UIS] DM "BAIIRLS puR Yybnoloy) Jue.ind sl AdU3 1BU] 0§ SWJSAS pue
sassa004d 'sajod N0 158} pue JOJIUOW ‘Bujwexadl ApAljoecad Sp) "paleIpaelun Jou pajosjapun ob Jou [|Im ‘SI0P SUO JUBAS BUF Ul ‘pue In3de Jou
HIm @ouBpuadspul JO yoealq B 1oy} 2dURINSSE d|qeuosesl apiaoad 03 §1043u0D 3dAy ,10938p, puR LJuarald,, Y100 Yjim SWSISAS pue $asses0ld ‘saiijod
Buijuawsa|duig Sapnjoul Sduspuadapu) bulujejuiew o} yoeoudde NG *153123u1 2lgnd Y3 pue 'SJU3YD JPNE JNO "A3 O} |RjUsWepun s sauspuadapu)

s2uapuadapul Uo SN0y s,HUNOA '8 JSUIT




g7 ohed | SHNS0 JIPNE WOWIIRIS [RIPURUY 2TOT 4711 BunoA 3 15ui3 - [R3uspRU0Y

zmm:a:m._ 19NPUOD JO BP0 nO UBIS ISNUI |DUUDSIG <
ypne asueldwod e siahbii] uolRULIUGD Apig1ienb e ubis 0 aUn|igd -«
sasnods pue ‘sisnd} ‘spuspusdap "louuosiad J0 SUINJBL XB) JO MBIABI 3PNDUL S)ipne aoueduo) -

&

pallpne usag aAey siaulied [eqolb iy

fudess adokeq
siaused JUIpe 1oadlp pue siaujied pa1owotd Apmau '9]DAD JedA-BAl) B UO siauned gn ‘8104 JesiA-aa1y} e UO SIBpRD| Wl ||B JaA00 supne asurlidwod «

siauyied ubnosy} siabeusul Jo} SUOJRUIILUGD Apls1IEND -

A

saaAo|dwa HulAlSs-JUBlD pue s1aulied Jo) SUORRWIJU0D [enuuy
jpuuostad BulAses-1usld Joj Bulioliuouw pue Buiodal sa1R}IjIoR) WaIsAs Bupiojuow gouapuadapul paseq-gam ‘1sndqoy -

bujjsodal @auspuadapul jeuostad s,buno B 3susl



L1 abed | synsas JpRe JUSWIS}RYS jRRURLY ZTOZ &1 BUNOA § I5LI3 - [RUBRINOD

sJoupne yum Dudeiisiu) pue ssind asuaspuadapul syj BujpueisIBpUNn JO Annpaisuodsad sy} yim uoslad e puubIssy «

1S913]U] $O SIDJUOD pue BduspUSdspY] 3O asuelsoduwt ay) buljedUNWWed - do ) 2y} Je 8uo} Jedosd sy bujuiRUIRN <
sdiysuoieil pug 'sisaialul SSauisng pue Apwey juswAoidse '[BOUBUL 10} ssano.d Uoiieuwluod pue bujpodal AnoA Buijenjead
$10J3U0D 19939p pue Jusasid yjog buipnioul '$|043U0D [BULSIU} JO WDISAS B Y]] asupyduiod asuapuadapul Joypne Buyoeoiddy «

A

:3pN[oUl PINOD AJLIOYINY INOA 10} SUDIJRISPISUOD BDUBPUSUBPU] «

-uapuadapul SURUa) PUE S| JOJIPNE JIdY] a.nsus 03 30ejd uj
seunpano.d pue $a1ajjod aAey pinoys sauedulod 'AjBupioddY -juapuadapul 8.8 SI0NPNe 8Y) Jey] 81nsud 0 Aliqisuodsal pa.eys e BUIABY 231WIOD
1PNy pue ‘pieog oy ‘JuswabeuRW S,AJIOYINY BUI YIIM *AIOUINY U] pue Joypne 3y} 4104 Jo ANgIsuodsai e s| asuapuadapu) Jojpne Bupnsug -

Ajri0yiny ayj 10} SUOIIRISPISUOD asuspuadapu]



2012 financial statement audit results | Page 18

Confidential - Ernst & Young LLP



REME B, BRSTALRY )
ETS, SO L [FTS P L3 PRI
eoverubd MIIGER PEINIE RATINC WK

g5 yo Sumet Magkal Xood B PAARORI SEITT SEK 3

T 30 Aoy ﬁsﬁﬁuﬁﬁn@ﬁaﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ%aﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%
e ide gr, Sxmrsopnon ur Sugsodr pus Suymiymed 0 AONRIMSSE SURERT AL T TH apmnal o} @
pandimoe poe pendsap AgEms w57 BIN0 S Ty PapTRR 12K AT 207 TR WE SRS RO o 2Ede
‘ry Sanny 2p I 30 e Suppm: s Funmaie oy a0 Toaun Ao urrsAs e memnds 1 Uy

IR apr peopid sy poe sampd g sakophis 36 Srpme opanpunys SOy
IR Eﬂaﬁuﬁi%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁaﬁgﬁaﬁﬁangmﬁhéé

PIEO MY G VEITY 9 0 SRIFININGT MeAT] S PRI A1 P
77 Shimny, Jp YU S0 SITERE 90 6,

Il MRS TEAS
sty IHLITHA UL B YRR M
GG TLL | PRIaN AL
SR ELE AT SudoR] STIOND —

&7 BUnD A '3 1503 - [B]3UBPLLCD



2012 financial statement audit results | Page 20

Confldential ~ Ernst & Young LLP



1z 8beg | synsad ypne JUBWISIRYS [RDURLY 2T0Z 471 bunoa g 18U - [RIIUBPYUCT

'aAJBS3) B SB pajeubisep sey AjioyIny ayj uolliill G'G$ SSPNIDUL SIBSSE JON «

2102 1102 0T0Z 6002 8002 L00Z 900< cooe P00<

-$

000'2%

000'¥S

UOI}SOd JONE 000'9%

saIjIlIgel =

S}OSSY B 000'8%S
000°'0TS
000°21$

(spuesnoy} uf) (ZT0Z - £002) UoI}Sod 38N jo sisAjeuy
Ajloyiny saljjioed jeuoijednpd N



7z abed | s1nsas Jjpne JUswRleLS |ROURUY 2102 4171 Bunca g 15w - [RIjUspyued

0T0Z 6002 8002 L00Z 9002 S00C ¥00<

4 B o 22 R ped P oy ..m
000'2$
Jsyion
000'7$
SB](RAI2I9Y [
000°9%
SJUSLWISAAU| pue UYSED N
1 2z9'6% 000°'0T$
TTC'0TS LOPOTS
ESYILS - 000'2T$

(spuesnoyj uf) (ZTOZ - ¥002) S}oSSY [ejoL Jo sjuduodwod
Aldoyiny saijijioed jeuoilesnps N




¢ afied | SHASS HPNE JUSWBIRIS fRIdURLY TTOZ 471 BUNOA B JSUIE - [RRUDPHLOD

2102 1102 O0T0Z 6002z 8002 L1002 9002 S00c ¥00<2

1

(009)%

Byion

*JU] 1534934 B

$384 "UIWIpY

4

€5

€8E'ESGSE'ES  oriTes TOEES 2SE

PEEES geo'ps

(spuesnoy} uj) (ZT0Z - ¥002) SeNUdASY JO SISA[eUY
Ajiloyiny saijij1oe4 jeuoliednp3 N



p 8B | SHNS2) JIPNE JUIWDILIS JRISUBLY ZTOZ 277 BunoA § 3SUIT - [RIJUBPIUGS

0 000’8 0 0 0 0 ’ ] 005" 0 Emew&:gs_mm N 1o 31R1SIR
291 9% 0zt 96 122- 961t 981 16 S6E g3d0 104 UOISIACIE
18 001 2é 601 viT 8ET S 020'T LT £61 553 |RUOISSB}0Id s
8ES 265 209 9TL £6L . PES 058 €64 8982 : i
2£58'15 885°TS SR8°TS ors'TS LIgTS 1695 1S S8G'1S 0BV 1S LEE'TS paEiEd pue sopeesHE
2102 1102 0T0¢ 6002 3002 1002 9007 o0z $007 \
(000'TS)
0%
000'TS
000'2%
000'ES
000'vS$
000°6S
000°9S
000'LS
000'8S

(spuesnoyj ui) (2102 - ¥002) sesuadx3
Ayioyiny saijioed jeuoileanp3 ri




¢z abed | SNSes PPOT JUAWIIR)S JREPURY ZTOZ 477 BUNOA 7 1LY - IBRUSPLIOD

2102 TT02 0102 6002 8002 L00Z 9002 S00C vOO<

00F$

009%
suwlooyj bupedado o

008%

000°'TS$

002'1$

00v'1S

(SPUBSNOY] UI) (ZTOZ - #002) Jed A Aq swodu| buijesado
Ajidoyiny Sa13ij1oe 4 [RUOIRINPT [N




o7 abeg | sHnse) JPNE JUIWRIE}S IRIUBLY ZTOZ &1 Buno A 8 1513 - [ejjuspiueD

ZTo2 TI0Z 0T0Z 6002 8002 L0OZ 9002 S00Z ¥00C

-$

000'2%

000'v$

000'9%

uoljisod 1N @

gcglog T4 9% L 000'8$
€92°L9

- 000'0TS

2LOTTS - 000°21S

(spuesnoyj ur) (ZT0Z - ¥002) Jed A Aq uosiiedwo) uol}isod 19N
Ajlioyiny saijljioe jeuoilednpd N



‘ponlesey sjubiy iy
‘g7 BUnoA p IS 6002 @

‘32UBIBIIP B sYEUE BUNOA B 1SUIT MOU §,3] ‘SPIMDLIOM YoM

N0 wol sjybisul 15838l HU3 pue abpapmouy Jeyiew pefans daap uno 'sausiiadxs
161988 PROIG INO JO Jouag aU3 NOA 8AlD 03 yJom am puy "sjooy bujiipne
Anjenb.ybiy ‘35238 3y3 buiiojdap pue Abojopoylaw egoib usaold e buisn ‘sanss|
¥a|dLica ISOW L) $S2IPPR 0 Wea) AleujddsIpinut 16t ayl bujigwssse Ag
HPNE SPIMPIIOM JUBISISUD B aplaold ap “sajuedulod Buipes) s,plaoM 8y} Jo Auew
Buippne ;0 aauapadxa ay] SABY OUM 'S[RUCISSD]0LM BDURINSSE 0000 N0 YiM
$14E3S PN NG Jo Ajlenb By} "SISPjOUSYRIS 18UJ0 PUR SIOJEAUL JOJ UDIIBULION
|EDID PUB $3IRWIWOD JIpNE 01 2aipadsiad 1esd pue jsngod ¢ ‘juswabeusw

o3 aBUBIIRYD IARINIISUSS PUB AjBlIE B Sop1A0.ad 3DURINSSE Judpuadapu) Buosls
$92IAJOS BIURINSSY S, Huno) g JSWIE hogy

*gM 8y U) hunesado seapisusy BuNok ¥ 15U JO pue
[eqo1S BUNOA 3 ISU4E 10 Wiy Jaqusw Dugalas.Iuaid e si d17 Buno ¥ Jsui3

'SJUBYD 0] SBIAISS SPIACL JOU OP SBHIUS 3$8Y ) "paIWI euesD BunoA 8 15Ul
pue pajiwil es.y 153 Je4 BUNOA B 1SUIT 'PaIWIT VIIW3 Buno, g Jsuid

‘N7 SEDiOWY BUNOA B 1SUIT 1S51313US DUIMOY0) SUT JO SIaqUISW 3¢ ARL SULLY
pue seale 2judelboab Al OUl PAPIAIP 1 uoneziueblo Bunoa B 3sUI3 8L

“5JUSI|D 03 SIAJDS SPIACLT JOU saop ‘aajueient A pajjuy Auediiod N & 'pajil
[2qo1o BUNOA ¢ 1suU43 ‘AU 1eba| a1eledas B S UDIYM SO LDED "PRIWIT 180D
BURC A B 15U4T 5O SULY Jaguew jo uoneziuebio jeqoib syl 0] siajes buno ¥ 1sui3

IO AT MMM
JSIA asea|d "UOLIBULIOUL DIOW J04

*|e1IUS30d 1194 SASIYDR SBIHUNUILIOD JIDIM NG PUE SJUB|D N0

‘gidoad Ino Suidisy AQ S3ualajip B aew ap "Ajend 0} JUSWHWWOD BuLisARMUN
U PUB S8NJBA paleys Ino AQ pajiun a.e 8|doad OO'PiT N0 "SPIMPIIOM "SBD1AIBS
Eom;nm pUP UOIDBSUER) ‘XB} "8JUBINSSE U JOpe3| egolh 8 s1 Buno % ISl

bunoj g Jsuil Inoqy

AJosiapy | suoioesuel] | xe] | asueinssy
Huno i B ISuULy




“H““Ilm..

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
With Report of Independent Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

Ell ERNST & YOUNG



)

)
't!
Py
Ty

ALy,
i)
T
=
.

opzyy
¥ieTy?

. om
s

103 Coriece Roap East ¢ PRINCETON, Nuw Jrrsey 08540
PHONE 609-987-0880 * Fax 609-987-0850 * www.njefa.com

s
L
1]

W JEHSEY EDUCATIGNAL
EACILITIES AUTHORTY

Pt

Report of Management

Management of the Authority is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation
of these financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and, consequently, they reflect
certain amounts based upon the best estimates and judgment of management.

The financial statements have been audited by the independent firm of Emst & Young LiP,
which was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes
of all mectings of the Authority, The independent auditor’s opinion is presented on page 2.

The Authority maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization, that financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generatly accepted in the
United States, that assets of the Authority are properly safeguarded, and that the covenants of all.
financing agreements are honored, There are, however, inherent limitations in the effectiveness
of any system of internal control, inciuding the possibility of human error and the circumvention
of controls. Accordingly, even an effective internal control system can provide only reasonable
assurance that its goals are achieved.

Consistent with Executive Order No. 122, the Authority, through its Audit and Evaluation
Committecs, engages the independent auditors. The Audit and Evaluation Comsmittees comprise
individuals who are not employees of the Authority, and who mest certain standards of
independence and financial expertise. The Audit Committee periodically meets with the
independent auditors, and is responsible for assisting the Mermbers of the Authority in oversceing
the Authority’s compHance with legal, regulatory and ethical requirements, as well as overseeing
the integrity and quality of the Authority’s financial statements. The independent auditors have
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee. L

Derek S, Hansel Maric P. Muetler
Executive Director Controller

March 12, 2013



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that management’s discussion and
analysis and the schedule of funding progress on pages 5.7 and page 20, respectively, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidehce to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authorify’s basic financial statements. The supplemental financial information
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplemental financial information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
~ statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the supplemental financial
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The supplemental financial information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audits of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 12, 2013
on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Authority’s internal control over

financial reporting and compliance.
é/vm:t ¥ MLLP

March 12, 2013



Condensed Financial Information

The following table represents condensed balance sheet information and changes between
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 and between December 31, 2010 and December 31,

2012:

Increase Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)
2012 2011 2010 2011 10 2082 2010 to 2011

Current assets $ 5,785871 $ 4,550,043 $ 11,478,450 27.16% (60.36%)
Capital assets, net 81,490 110,140 140,939 (26.01%) (21.85%)
Total assets 5,867,361 4,660,183 11,619,389 25.90% (59.89%}
Current liabilities 235,102 254,185 292,387 (7.51%) (13.07%)

Noneurrent Habilities 976,949 810,841 254,632 20.49% 218.44%

Total liabilities 1,212,051 1,065,020 547,019 13.80% 94.70%
Total net position $ 4,655310 $ 3,595,157 § 1 1,072,370 28.49% {67.53%)

The following table represents condensed information from the Statements of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and changes between 2011 and 2012 and between 2010

and 2011:

Increase Increase
: {Decrease) (Decrease}
2012 2011 - 2010 2011 to 2012 2010 to 2012
Operating revenues: .
Administrative fees $ 37383,100 § 3,355,088 § 3,710,465 0.83% (9.58%)
Tatal operating revenues 3,383,166 3,355,088 3,710,465 '
Operating expenses:
Salaries and related expenses 1,532,384 1,587,923 1,884,807 {3.509) (15.75%)
Provision for postemployment
benefits 168,100 562,000 120,000 (70.09%) 368.33%
General expenses 626,107 691,803 694,480 (9.50%) (.39%)
Total operating expenses 2,326,591 2,841,726 2,699,287 (18.13%%) (5.28%0)
Net operating income 1,056,509 513,362 1,011,178 105.80% (45.23%)
Nonoperating revenues
(expenses):
Investment income 3,644 9,425 14,066 (61.34%) (32.99%)
Payment to the State of
New Jersey — (8,000,000) - (100.00%) 1606.00%
Change in net position 1,060,153 {7,477,213) 1,025,244 (114.18%;) (829.31%)
Net position beginning of year 3,595,157 11,072,370 10,047,126 (67.53% 10.20%
Net position end of year $ 4655310 § 3,595,157 § 11072370 29.49% (67.53%)

Analysis of Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations

The Authority’s solid financial position and strong operating results continued.



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statements of Net Position

December 31
2012 2011

Assets
Current assets:

Cash b 77,838 % 94,026

Investments, principally U.S. Government obligations 5,130,603 4,413,444

Fees receivable 564,823 27,147

Prepaid expenses and other assets 12,607 15,426
Total current assets 5,785,871 4,550,043
Noncurent assets:

Capital assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation

of $625,625 and $590,487 during 2012 and 2011, respectively 81,490 110,140

Total assets ‘ 5,867,361 4,660,183
Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 235,102 254,185
Noncurrent liabilities: :

Postemployment benefits other than pension 948,580 780,480

Project obligations 28.369 30,361
Total noncurrent liabilities . 976,949 810,841
Total liabilities ' 1,212,051 1,065,026
Net position:

Invested in capital assets 81,490 110,140

Unrestricted 4,573,820 3,485,017
Total net position ' $ 4,655310 $ 3,595,157

See accompanying notes.



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from administrative fees $ 2,848,243 § 3,337,945
Cash payments for operating expenses (2,144,428) (2,280,149)
Net cash provided by operating activities 703,815 1,057,796
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (7,974,092) (7,727,132)
Sale and maturity of investments 7,258,092 14,700,150
Investment income 2,485 11,867
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (713,515) 6,984,885
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities :
Purchase of capital assets (6,488) (12,771)
Payment to State of New Jersey — (8,000,000)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (6,488) (8,012,771)
Net (decrease) increase in cash (16,188) 29,910
Cash at beginning of year 94,026 - 64,116
Cash at end of year S 77,838 $ 94,026

Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Net operating income ‘ $ 1,056,509 $ 513,362
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation : ‘ 35,138 43,570
Changes in assets and liabilities: ‘
Fees receivable (537,676) (18,837)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,819 1,694
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (19,083) (38,202)
Project obligations (1,992) (5,791)
Postemployment benefits other than pension 168,100 562,000
Net cash provided by operating activities . $ 703815 § 1,057,796

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing activities
Change in fair value of investments $ 1,159 § (2,442)

See accompanying notes.



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Capital Assets

Capital assets, which consist of furniture and equipment, are carried at cost and depreciated over
their useful lives using the straight-line method.

Recent Accounting Standard

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments; Application of Hedge
Accounting Termination Provisions (“GASB 64”). The objective of this Statement is to clarify
GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting Jfor Derivative Instruments, as it
applies to termination provisions when a counterparty of an interest rate or commodity swap is
replaced. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after June 15, 2011. GASB 64 will not have an impact on the Authority.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities (“GASB 65). The objective of this Statement is to either (a) properly classify certain
items that were previously reported as assets and Jiabilities as deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources or (b) recognize certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses or expenditures) or inflows of resources
(revenues). The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after December 15, 2012. The Authority has not completed the process of evaluating
the impact that will result from adopting GASB 65.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections-~2012 (“GASB 667). The
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governmental entities by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements—Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and F inancial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The provisions of
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012.
The Authority does not anticipate the jmplementation of GASB 66 will have an impact on its

financial statements.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Cash and Investments (continued)

- Investments of the Authority comprise the following:

2012 2011
Investments: :
U.S. Treasury Bills $ 5,120406 $ 4,392,874
Money Market Mutual Fund 1,197 20,570
Total investments $ 5,130,603 $ 4413444

In 2012 and 2011, the Authority had $1,197 and $20,570, respectively, invested in a money
market mutual fund, which invests in short-term and other obligations of the U.S. Treasury. All
investments are carried at fair value.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40, Deposit and
Investment Risk Disclosures (‘GASB 407), the Authority has assessed the Custodial Credit Risk,
the Concentration of Credit Risk, Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk of its Cash and Investments.

() Custodial Credit Risk — The Authority’s deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if
they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are: uncollateralized,
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized
with securities held by the pledging. financial institution’s trust department or agent but
not in the depositor—govemment’s name. The deposit risk is that, in the event of the
failure of a depository financial institution, the Authority will not be able to recover
deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Authority’s investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if
the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the Authority and are held
by either: the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the
Authority’s name. The risk is that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral

securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Authority’s bank balances were not exposed to
custodial credit risk since the full amount was covered by FDIC insurance.

13



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Cash and Investments (continued)

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201 1, investment income comprised the following:

2012 2011
Interest earnings : $ 2485 § 11,867
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments : 1,159 (2,442)

$ 3644 § 9425

4, Retirerﬁent Plans

The Authority’s employees participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of New
Jersey (PERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The Authority’s
contribution is determined by State statute and is based upon an actuarial computation performed
by the PERS. All benefits are established by State statute. The Authority’s required contribution
and pension expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $159,649,
$148,697 and $119,824, respectively. Employees of the Authority also contribute a percentage of
their wages to the pension system; the percentage range of contributions, as determined by
PERS, was 6.64% effective July 2012, 6.5% effective October 2011 and 5.5% prior to that back
to 2009. :

The PERS is administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The Division issues
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to: State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions
and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.

Employees hired after July 1, 2007 participate in PERS, the defined benefit plan, up to the
annual maximum wage for social security. The employee contributions based on wages in excess
of the annual maximum wage are contributed to the Defined Contribution Retirement Program
(DCRP). The Authority contributes 3% to the participants’ accounts on wages in excess of the
social security limit.

In addition to the Plans noted above, employees may elect to make tax-deferred contributions to
a 457 deferred compensation plan.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension (continued)

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan
and the net OPEB obligations for fiscal years 2009 through 2012 were as follows (doliar
amounts in thousands): _

Percentage of
Annual Anneal .
OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended (Benefit) _ Contributed Obligation
December 31, 2012 $ 168 0.00% § 948
December 31,2011 ‘ 562 0.00% 780
December 31, 2010 120 0.00% 218

In April 2008, the Authority established and funded an irrevocable trust in the amount of
$2,000,000 to pay for the employee postemployment medical benefits. At December 31, 2012
and 2011, the fair value of this trust fund was $1,851,610 and $1,921,510, respectively. As of-
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the actuarial liability for benefits was $2,799,610 and $2,701,510,
respectively, which, due to the establishment of the trust, is now approximately 66% funded. The
difference of 34% is reported as a liability on the Authority’s books. '

The most recent actuarial valuation date is January 1, 2011. Actuarial valuations involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the
future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding
progress presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear trend information
that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern
of sharing benefit costs between the Authority and the plan members to that point. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that ‘are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New J ersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

8. Net Position (continued)

. Unrestricted is the remaining net position, which can be further categorized as
designated or undesignated. The designated position is not governed by statute or
contract but is committed for specific purposes pursuant to Authority policy and/or
directives. The designated position includes funds and assets committed to working

capital.
Changes in Net Position
The changés in net position are as follows:
Invested

in Capital
Assets Unrestricted Total

Net position at December 31, 2010 $ 140,939 $10,931,431 $11,072,370
Net position change : - (7,477213) (7.477.213)
Capital asset additions 12,77} (12,771) -
Depreciation (43,570) 43,570 -

Net position at December 31, 201 1 110,140 3,485,017 3,595,157
Net position change - 1,060,153 1,060,153
Capital asset additions 6,488 (6,488) -
Depreciation (35,138) 35,138 -

Net position at December 31, 2012 S 81,490 $ 4,573,820 $ 4,655,310
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statements of Changes in Trustee Held Funds

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011
Funds held in trust at beginning of year $ 416,054,612 $ 549,554,797
Additions:

Proceeds from sale of bonds and issuance of notes: .

Par amount 240,620,000 370,033,000
Bond premium (discount), net 15,240,523 21,099,221

Annual loan and rental requirements 426,198,785 417,669,848

Investment income 3,464,656 1,938,789

U.S. Government debt service subsidies 1,874,814 1,758,840

Change in investment valuation reserve (115,562) (298,012)

Total additions - 687,283,216 812,201,686
Deductions:

Debt service: ‘
Interest : 248,101,741 255,769,946
Principal ' 176,374,142 165,386,877

Project costs 260,601,859 421,854,266

Issuance costs 1,835,137 1,994,418

Administrative fees : 3,385,740 3,353,044

College and university contributions returned 360,257 3,449,309

Transfers to escrow accounts for defeasance of
refunded issues ‘ 157,360,281 93,894,011

Total deductions - 848,019,157 - 945,701,871
Decrease in funds held in trust (160,735,941) (133,500,185)
Funds held in trust at end of year $ 255,318,671 § 416,054,612

The accompanying notes to supplemental financial statements are an integral part of this
statemernt.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

1. Introduction

Under the terms of the Authority’s enabling legislation, the Authority has the power to issue
bonds and notes on behalf of public and private institutions of higher education in the State of
New Jersey. The obligations issued by the Authority are conduit debt and are not guaranteed by,
nor do they constitute a debt or obligation of, the State of New Jersey.

Because the bonds and notes issued by the Authority are nonrecourse conduit debt obligations of
the Authority, the Authority has, in effect, none of the risks and rewards of the related
financings. The supplemental financial statements presented herein include information
pertaining to funds held by Trustees of the various bond and note issuances of the Authority.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The Trustee Held Funds as presented is an agency fund and as such is custodial in nature and
does not present results of operations and utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. '

3. Funds Held in Trust

Funds held in trust include amounts in the construction, debt service and debt service reserve
funds and the renewal and replacement accounts established for each bond issue. Balances
maintained in the construction funds represent unexpended proceeds allocated for specific
projects; the debt service fund, debt service reserve fund, and renewal and replacement account
balances represent amounts reserved for payment of debt service and the renewal and

replacement of major components of projects as required by the provisions of the various series
resolutions. The following is a schedule of the aggregate funds held in trust as of December 31,

2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
Construction funds $ 180,265,008 $ 327,129,535
Debt service funds 2,572,503 1,567,489
Debt service reserve funds 65,808,789 80,653,538
Renewal and replacement accounts 6,672,371 6,704,050

$ 255,318,671 § 416,054,612
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

5. Loans and Leases Receivable (continued) .

Restricted fund receivables comprise the foﬂow’ing:

Loans:

Tnstitute for Advanced Study

Princeton University
Morigages:

Caldwell College

Centenary College

College of Saint Elizabeth

Drew University :

Fairleigh Dickinson University

Felician College

Georgian Court University

Institute for Defense Analyses

New Jersey Institute of Technology

Princeton Theological Seminary

Rider University

Saint Peter’s College

Seton Hall University

Stevens Institute of Technology

University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey
Leases:

Kean University

Montclair State University

New Jersey City University

Passaic County Community College

Ramapo College of New Jersey

Rowan University (formerly Glassboro State College)

Thomas Edison State College

The College of New Jersey

The Richard Stockton College of New Jersey-

The William Paterson University of New Jersey
Higher Education Capital Improvement Fund
Courtty College Capital Projects Fund
Dormitory Safety Trust Fund
Library Grant Program

December 31

2012

2011

52,915,000 $

54,970,000

1,796,772,500 1,818,577,500
17,605,000 18,335,000
36,184,066 37,245,341
21,790,000 22,390,000
68,458,571 68,494,915
90,877,249 94,589,315
7,775,000 8,400,000
27,046,916 27,955,705
12,680,000 13,185,000
75,427,500 137,885,000
98,750,000 102,435,000
50,247,500 46,455,000
39,211,471 41,169,728
104,547,917 111,975,416
75,102,500 76,557,500
252,045,000 258,075,000
344,452,739 353,592,231
333,135,000 342,705,000
129,355,000 131,887,500
13,512,500 13,635,000
263,650,000 227,575,000
293,787,500 304,832,500
9,970,238 10,642,805
353,810,000 360,825,000
237,489,000 243,336,500
169,752,500 157,587,500
358,095,000 384,265,000
4,475,000 6,575,000
23,240,000 28,880,000
29,220,000 31,465,000

$ 5,391,380,667 $ 5,536,499,456
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable (continued)

Originat Final Net Amount Quistanding
Issue Maturity Effective December 31
Issue Amount Date Interest Rate 2012 2011
Bonds Payable (continued) '
Higher Education Capital
Improvement Fund: :
Series 2000 A . $ 132,800,000 ©/1/2020 5.242% ~-% 6,795,000
Series 2000 B 145,295,000 9172020 5.003% - 7,595,000
Series 2002 A 194,590,000 9/1/2022 4,599% 3,890,000 11,470,000
Series 2004 A 76,725,060 9/1/2024 4.352% 33,875,006 37,215,000
Series 2005 A 169,790,000 912019 4.121% 168,036,000 168,310,000
Series 2006 A 155,460,000 9/1/2024 4.421% 152,308,000 152,880,000
Institute for Advanced Study: . .
2001 Series A 11,000,000 77172031 5.101% 1,940,000 2,215,000
2006 Series B ' 29,600,000 7/1/2031 3.990% 27,500,000 28,400,000
2006 Series C 26,000,000 7112036 Variable 18,000,000 18,400,000
2008 Series C 11,255,000 7/1/2021 3.619% 5,475,000 5,955,000
Institute for Defense Analyses: _
2000 Series D 16,695,000 10/1/2030 Varizble 12,686,000 13,185,000
Kean University: ‘
Series 1998 B 25,995,000 71142027 4.872% 5,345,000 5,805,000
Series 2003 D 75,000,000 /12033 4.811% 9,885,000 11,615,000
Series 2005 B 161,915,000 712037 4.681% 20,945,000 23,145,000
Series 2007 D 117,795,000 7/1/2039 4.553% 112,055,000 114,040,000
Series 2009 A ' 179,380,000 9/1/2036 6.404% 179,380,000 179,380,000
Library Grant Program: _
Series 2002 A 45,000,060 O/1/2022 4.560% 29,224,000 31,465,000
Montclair State University:
Series 2002 F 78,500,000 T/1/2032 4.489% 20,125,000 22,375,000
Series 2003 E ) 23,425,000 7172033 4.445% 18,100,000 18,100,000
* Series 2003 L 94,540,000 7/1i2034 4.3541% 25,645,000 27,800,000
Series 2006 A 98,090,000 77172036 4.816% 88,705,600 90,650,060
Series 2006 B 9,970,000 77172012 4.133% - 2,180,000
Series 2006 J 154,110,600 7172034 4.300% 153,595,000 154,110,000
Series 2007 A 6,150,000 /12021 4.022% 5,050,000 5,475,000
Series 2008 J 27,545,000 7/01/2038 5,100% 26,450,000 27,620,000
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable (continued)

Original Final Net Amount Outstanding
Issue Matarity Effective December 31

Issue Amonnt Bate Interest Rate 2012 2011

Bonds Payable (continued)

Ramapo College of New Jersey:
Series 1998 G 16,845,000 77112028 4832% -3 7,685,000
Series 2002 H 28,655,000 7712032 4.485% - 14,695,000
Series 2002 I 2,145,000 712032 4.485% - 1,050,000
Series 2002 F 29,620,000 71/2032 4.485% - 15,195,000
Series 2003 F 1,820,000 7112013 3257% 255,000 495,000
Series 2003 G 9,300,000 7/1/2013 3.110% 800,000 1,575,000
Series 2003 H 18,936,000 77172029 4.346% 16,705,000 - 17,365,000
Series 2004 E 53,980,000 77172034 4.630% 12,395,000 13,140,000
Series 2006 D 49,085,000 12036 4.521% 33,845,000 34,925,000
Series 2006 1 106,820,000 12036 4417% 105,490,060 105,835,000
Series 2011 A 19,090,000 77172021 3.325% 17,470,000 19,090,000
Series 2012 B 80,670,000 7/1/2042 3.68%% 80,670,000 -

Rider University:
2002 Serles A 27,560,000 77112017 4,709% - 13,960,000
2004 Series A 14,735,000 77112034 5.301% - 13,075,000
2007 Series C 22,000,000 71172037 5.172% - 20,830,000
2012 Series A 52,020,000 772037 3.741% 52,020,080 -

Rowan University {formerly

Glassboro State College): )

Series 1983 D 3,500,000 7712013 3.000% 180,000 355,000
Series 2002 K 14,920,000 TIH2033 4.866% - 340,000
Series 2003 I 64,910,000 7172030 4.714% 1,955,000 3,815,000
Serfes 2004 C 61,275,000 7712034 4.697% 4,525,000 6,655,000
Series 2005 D 51,840,000 /12030 4.532% 47,525,000 49,280,000
Series 2006 G 69,405,000 7112031 4.362% 63,585,000 65,090,000
Series 2007 B 121,355,000 71112034 4.266% 117,340,060 118,650,000
Series 2008 B 35,205,000 71172027 4.839% 35,205,000 35,205,000
Series 2011 C 712025 3.705% 28,410,000 30,045,000

30,045,000
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Suppleméntal Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable (continued)

Original Final Net Amounnt Outstanding
Issue Maturity Effective December 31
Issue Amount Date Interest Rate 2012 2011
Bonds Payable (continued)
University of Medicine and Dentistry

of New Jersey: .

Series 2009 B 258,075,000 12/1/2032 TAT2% $ 252,045,000 § 238,075,000
The Williatn Patersen University of
New Jersey:
Series 2002 E 42,125,000 7102027 4.714% - 15,455,000
Serfes 2004 A 30,035,000 172028 4.131% 2,300,000 21,855,000
Series 2005 E 42,295,000 7/1/2030 4.546% 37,580,000 39,030,000
Series 2008 C £8,670,000 7/1/2038 4.724% 82,235,000 84,150,000
Series 2012 C 33,815,000 77172042 2.955% 33,815,000 -
Series 2012 D 21,860,000 77172028 2.489% 17,290,000 -
Notes Payable
Princeton University: :
Various Commercial Paper 120,000,000* NA Variable 46,160,080 17,570,000
1.eases Payable
Kean University 916,666 6/1/2014 4.064% 50,23% 169,731
Kean University 10,000,000 71172020 3.140% 7,756,000 8,750,000
Kean University . 15,000,000 2115/2021 2.820% 12,375,000 13,875,000
Thomas Rdison State College 1,800,000 3/8/2012 3.647% - 38,708
Thomas Edison State College 2,700,000 9/28/2022 Variable 764,235 1,151,388
Thomas Edison State College 700,000 9/14/2015 2.370% 395,232 . 532,691
Thomas Edison State College 948,000  7/1/2019 2.427% 810,772 920,018
Treasurer, State of New Jersey,

Series 1999 A 19,295,000 9/1/2014 4.705% 840,000 1,225,000
Fssex County, Series 1999 C 4,570,000 9/1/2014 5.Y77% $00,000 1,180,000
Hudson County, Serjes 1999 D 7,750,000 9/1/2014 5.177% 1,366,000 2,600,000
Middlesex County, Series 1999E ~ 4,370,000 9/1/2014 5.053% 776,600 1,130,000
Passaic County, Series 1999 F 2,015,000 9/1/2014 5.125% 350,000 515,000
Hudson County Community College :

(Chapter 78), Series 1999 G 2,035,060 912014 5177% 355,000 525,000

* Maximum authorized amount.
** Build America Bond

$ 5,436,335,251 $ 5,581,781,540
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

7. Refunded Bond Issues (continued)

Refunded bonds outstanding at December 31, 2012 comprise the following:

Principal . ‘
Amount Refunded Issues *__ Refunding Issues
Outstanding  Principal Debt Date : Original
December Amount Calt Service of Amount
fssue 31,2012 Refunded Date Savings _ Issuance Issue of Issue
Higher Bducationat Capital ‘
Improvement Fund
Series 2002 A 3 - $41850,000 /172012 $ 5080385  6/10/2005 Series 2005 A $1658,790,000
Princeton University
2003 Series B 25000000 25,000,000 7/1/2043 4243735  A/12/2005 2005 Series A 139,550,000
2004 Series 31 470,000 31,470,000 7/1/2014 .
The Witliam Paterson University
of New Jersey ]
Series 2002 E - 11,305,000 7/1/2012 1420584 111072005 Series2005E 42,295,000
Princeton University
2003 Series E 5,950,000 5,850,000 7/1/2013 2,755,549  8/10/2006 2006 SeriesE 45,500,000
2004 Series D 49,045,000 49,045,000 7/1/2014
2005 Series B 7,820,000 7,820,000 71172015
Rowan University .
Series 2002 K. - 4805000 7/1/2012 738,003 11/16/2006 Series2006 G 69,405,000
Series 2003 1 17,225,000 17,385,000 7/1/2013
Higher Education Capital
Improvement Fund
Series 2002 A - 102,810,000 97172052 4438363 10/26/2006 Seres 2006 A 155,460,000
Series 2004 A 22,760,000 22,760,000 9172014
Ramapo College of New Jersey
Series 2002 H o 8,795,000 71172012 3,510,943  1128/2006 Series20061 106,820,000
Series 20021 - 615,000 7/1/2012 ‘
Series 20602 J - 8,835,000 7112012
Series 2004 £ 40,300,060 40,300,000 7/1/2014
Series 2006 D 11,145,000 11,145,000 7/1/2616
Montelair State University )
Series2002F - 43775000 56,125000 7/1/2015 6,194,157  12/14/2006 Series20067 154,110,000
Series 2003 L 55,500,600 64,250,006 7/1/2014
New Jersey City University
Series 2002 A, - 11,785,600 7/1/2012 696,503 4/4/2007  Series2007F 17,910,060
Kean University
Series 2003 D 54,420,000 60395000 7/1/2013 14985307  4/13/2007 Series2007E 156,240,000
Series 2005 B 71,035,000 71,530,000 7/1/2016
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

7. Refunded Bond Issues (continued)

Principal
Amount Refunded Issues Refunding Issues
Outstanding  Principal Pebt Date Origigal
December Amount  Call Service of Amount
Isse 31,2012 Refunded Date Savinps _ Isseance Issue of Issue
The William Paterson University '
of New Jersey
Seres 2002 B 3 ~ $14330000 1X5/2012 § 2,797,672 10/30/2012 Series2012C § 33815000
The Wiiliam Paterson University
of New Jersey
Series 2004 A 18240000 18240000 712014 1,784,731 10/30/2012 Series2012D 17,260,000
Rowan University .
Series 2001 C ~ 37,140,000 7172011 3,831495 57252011 Series2011C 30,045,000

* Debt restructuring
*¥Not NJEFA refonding bonds
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct

“and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

St ¥ MLLP

March 12, 2013
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EXHIBIT V1

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL-FACILITTES AUTHORITY
2013 BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS
FOR TWO MONTHS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

Executive Summary

The NJEFA concluded February with year-to-date net operating income in the amount of
$193,529, based on revenues of $538,853 and expenses of $345,324. As a result, net
operating income is higher than budgeted by $95,119. This difference is primarily a result of

less than budgeted expenses.

Revenues

Revenues were close to the budgeted amount through February.

Expenses

Operating expenditures for the first fwo months of the year were favorable as compared
to budget by $95,036. Most of the fine items display positive deviations and are primarily the
result of staff vacancies and timing. '



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
ACTUAL vs. BUDGET REPORT

FEBRUARY 2013
Month Ended Two Months Ended
February 28, 2013 February 28, 2013
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Operating Revenues _
Annual Administrative Fees $269,160 $269,160 $ - $538,320 $ 538,320 $ -
Initial Fees - - - - - -
Investment Income - 57 225 (168) 533 450 83
$ 269,217 $269,385 § {168) $ 538853 $ 538770 §_ 83
Operating Expenses
Salaries $85006 $101622 $ 16,526 $ 169,748 $ 203,075 $ 83,327
Employee Benefits 25,038 30,000 4962 49,894 60,000 10,1086
Provision for Post Ret. Health Benefits 15,142 15,142 - 30,284 30,284 -
Office of The Governor 2,167 2,187 - . 4,334 4,334 -
Office of The Atlorney General 126 4,867 4,541 726 9,334 8,608
Sponsored Programs - 500 500 - 1,000 1,000
Telephone 1,195 1,667 472 1,195 3,334 2,139
Gasoline & Auto Maintenance 342 417 75 884 834 150
Rent ‘ 18,360 20,500 2,140 36,719 41,000 4,281
Utilitles 1,686 1,792 106 3,373 3,584 211
Postage 93 375 282 114 750 836
Office Supplies & Expenses 2,007 3,250 1,243 2772 6,500 3,728
Travel & Official Receptions 217 1,667 1,450 217 3,334 T3,117
Staff Training & Tuition Reimbursement 375 1,750 1,375 375 3,500 3,125
Insurance 2,101 2,101 - 4,202 4,202 -
_Annual Report & Newsletters 465 2,333 1,868 465 4,686 4,201
Public Relations ' : 189 625 436 189 1,250 1,061
Professional Services 17,627 24 917 7,290 17,627 25,334 7,707
Dues & Subscriptions o77 3,045 2,068 12,347 14,545 2,198
Data Processing : 3,500 3,750 250 3,500 7,500 .. 4,000
Maintenance of Equipment 1,393 3417 2,024 1,383 6,834 5,441
Depreciation _ - 2,583 2,683 - 5,166 5,166 -
Contingency - - - - - -
180,679 228,287 47,608 345,324 440,360 95,038

Net Operating Income $ 88538 $ 41,008 $ 47440 $ 193529 § 98410 § 795,119
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